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NIRAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
 

 

NOTICE 
 

Notice is hereby given that the 34th Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of Niraj Ispat 
Industries Limited will be on Monday, September 30th, 2019 at 02.00 P.M. held at its Registered 
Office of the Company situated at 5140-41/34, F/F Chaudhary Market Gali Peti Wali, Rui Mandi, 
Sadar Bazar Delhi 110006 to transact the following business: 

 
ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the year 
2019 including audited Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2019, the Statement of Profit and Loss 
and Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that date and the Reports of the Board of 
Directors and Auditors thereon. 

 
SPECIAL BUSINESS : 

 

2. Re- Appointment of Mr. ANIL KUMAR SHARMA (DIN:02664381) as an Independent 
Director 

 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following Resolution 
as an SpecialResolution. 

 
“RESOLVED THAT, in accordance with the with the provisions of Section 149 read with 
Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013, and Regulation 17 of the Securities and Exchange Board 
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, or any 
amendment thereto or modification thereof, this Meeting hereby approves the re-appointment 
of Mr. ANIL KUMAR SHARMA (DIN: 02664381) as an Independent Director of the Company for a 
period of five years with effect from 30th September, 2019, or till such earlier date to confirm 
with the policy on retirement and as may be determined by any applicable statutes, rules, 
regulations or guidelines.” 

                                                                                                           For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
                                                                                                                    For NIRAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
 
  

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 28.08.2019                                                                                                                                                        Sd/- 

Name: Haryant Kumar Chaudhry 
DIN:   00021795 

Designation: Director and CEO 
Address: KD-46 Kavi Nagar  

                      Ghaziabad 201002  
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NOTES: 

 

(1) A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to 
attend and vote on a poll and such proxy need not be a member of the company. A 
person can act as proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the 
aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the company. In order 
to be effective the proxies should be received by the company at its registered office not 
less than 48 hours before the meeting. Proxies submitted on behalf of corporate including 
companies, societies etc., must be supported by an appropriate resolution of the Board of 
Directors or other governing body. 
 

(2) Members are requested to bring their attendance slip along with their copy of Annual Report 
to the meeting, Proxies should fill in the attendance slip for attending the meeting. 

 
(3) Members are requested to quote their Folio Number/Client ID, in all correspondence and 

intimate any change in their address to the Share Transfer Agent/Depository Participant 
promptly. 

 
(4) Pursuant to the provisions of Section 101 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules 18 of 

the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Company is sending the 
Annual Report electronically on email addresses registered with the Depositories/the 
Company’s Share Transfer Agent. For others the company will continue to send the printed 
Annual Reports as usual. Shareholders wishing to receive the Annual Report in electronic 
mode are requested to provide their email address to the Company’s Share Transfer Agent. 

 
(5) All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice are open for inspection at the 

Registered Office of the Company between 11.00 AM to 1.00 PM on any working day till the 
date of themeeting. 

 
(6) An explanatory statement pursuant to section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to 

Special Businesses 2 is annexed hereto and forms part of this notice. 
 

(7) The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed 
from Friday, 21st August, 2019 to Sunday, 29th August, 2019 (both days inclusive) for the 
purpose of Annual General Meeting. 

(8) In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of 
the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended and Regulation 44 
of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the Company is pleased to provide its members facility to 
exercise their right to votes on resolutions proposed to be considered at the 34th Annual 
General Meeting (AGM) though e-voting Services provided by National Securities Depository 
Limited (NSDL).                   
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      PROCESS FOR E-VOTING: 

 
The voting period begins on 27th September, 2019 at 9.00 AM and ends on 29th 
September, 2019 at 5.00 PM. During this period members of the company, holding shares 
either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date of 20th 
September, 2019 may cast their vote electronically.  

 
Kindly note that vote once casted cannot be modified. For EVEN, you can log-in any 
number of times on e-voting platform of NSDL till you have voted all the resolutions or till 
the end date of voting period. 

 
Note: e-Voting shall not be allowed beyond said time i.e. 29th September, 2019, 5:00 P.M. 

 
The instructions for remote e-voting are as under: 

i. Open email and open PDF file viz; “remote e-voting.pdf” with your Client ID or Folio 
No. as password. The said PDF file contains your user ID and password/PIN for 
remote e-voting. Please note that the password is an initial password. 

ii. Launch internet browser by typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ 
iii. Click on Shareholder – Login 
iv. Put user ID and password as initial password/PIN noted in step (i) above. Click Login. 
v. Password change menu appears. Change the password/PIN with new password of 

your choice with minimum 8 digits/characters or combination thereof. Note new 
password. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other 
person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential. 

vi. Home page of remote e-voting opens. Click on remote e-voting: Active Voting Cycles. 
vii. Select “EVEN” of “Name of the company”. 

viii. Now you are ready for remote e-voting as Cast Vote page opens. 
ix. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate option and click on “Submit” and also 

“Confirm” when prompted. 
x. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed. 

xi. Once you have voted on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 
xii. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to 

send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority 
letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized 
signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer through e-mail to 
csvivekkumar@gmail.com  with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in 
 
 

 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:csvivekkumar@gmail.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
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It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take 
utmost care to keep your password confidential. Kindly note that Login to e-voting 
website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key-in the correct password, 
in such an event, you will need to go through 'Forgot Password' option available on the 
site to reset the same. 

 
 

Your login id and password can be used by you exclusively for e-voting on the 
resolutions placed by the companies in which you are theshareholder. 

 
You can also update your mobile number and e-mail id in the user profile details of the 
folio, which may be used for sending future communication(s). 

 
In case of any queries, you may refer to the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for 
members and e-voting user manual for members available at the Downloads sections of 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com or contact NSDL at the following toll free no.: 1800-222-
990. For any further grievance related to the Remote E-voting, members may contact 
NSDL at the following contact information: 
 
Phone No.+91 22 24994600/24994738 

 
Email ID:evoting@nsdl.co.in 

 

The result of voting will be announced at 5140-41/34, F/F Chaudhary Market Gali Peti 
Wali, Rui Mandi, Sadar Bazar Delhi 110006 by the Chairperson of the AGM on Monday, 
30th September, 2019. The result of the voting will be communicated to the stock 
exchanges and will also be posted on the website of theCompany. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:ev
mailto:oting@nsdl.co.in
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Explanatory Statement 
(Pursuant to section 102 of Companies Act, 2013) 

 
 
Item 2: The Nomination & Remuneration Committee (‘the Committee’) and the Board of 
Directors of the Company (‘the Board’) are of the view that in order to take advantage of 
Mr. ANIL KUMAR SHARMA counsel and advice,  it would be appropriate that he continues 
to serve on the Board. Accordingly, the Board at the meeting held on 28th August, 2019, on 
the recommendation of the Committee, recommended for the approval of the Members, 
continuation of Mr. ANIL KUMAR SHARMA as an Independent Director of the Company. 

 
 

                                                                                    For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
For NIRAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIES LIMITED                                                         

 
  
  Place: New Delhi 
  Date: 28.08.2019                                                                                                                                                    
 

Sd/- 
    Name: Haryant Kumar Chaudhry 

DIN:   00021795 
Designation: Director and CEO 

Address: KD-46 Kavi Nagar  
            Ghaziabad 201002 UP      
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

 
Dear  Members, 

 

Your Directors feel pleasure in presenting their 34th Annual Report together with the Audited 
Statements of accounts for the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2019. 

 

FINANCIAL RESULTS 

 

The performance of the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2019 is summarized below: 

 

Particulars Yearended 31.03.2019(in 
lakhs) 

Yearended 31.03.2018(in 
lakhs) 

Income(Gross) 644.12 717.62 

Expenses during the year excluding 
depreciation & interest 

504.48 535.84 

Profit/(Loss) before depreciation & interest 
Less: - Depreciation 

Interest 

139.63 
30.34 
24.57 

181.77 
31.08 
23.37 

Profit before Taxes 84.72 127.32 
Less:- Provision for Taxation 
          - Current Tax/MAT 
          - Short/Excess provision 

of                    taxation for 
previous period 

          - Deferred Tax 

 
21.41 
0.47 

 
(2.72) 

 
35.77 
1.66 

 
(6.03) 

 
Profit/(Loss) After Tax 65.54 95.91 
Prior period adjustments - - 
Profit/(Loss)  for the year after 
tax and prior period 
adjustments 

65.54 95.91 

 

DIVIDEND 

 
Your Directors intend to plough back available resources for financial requirements and express their 
inability to recommend any dividend for the financial year. 
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RESERVES 

 
The Company has transferred Rs. 18,00,000/- from the statement of profit and loss to general reserve 
during the year under review. 
 
BUSINESS OPERATIONS 

 
The fiscal year 2018-19 was a period of relative stability. During the year under review, our Company 
achieved a profit of Rs. 84.71/-(in lakhs) before tax as against Profit 127.31/-(in lakhs) in the preceding 
financial year. 

 
Significant & Material Orders Passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals Impacting the Going 

Concern Status of the Company 

 
     No significant and material orders were passed by any Regulator(s) or Court(s) or Tribunal(s) which would 

impact the going concern status of the company. 
 
 Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the Company which 

have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial 
statements relate and the date of the report 

 
      No material changes and commitment affecting the financial position of the company have occurred 

between the end of the financial year to which this financial statements relate and the date of this report. 
 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSIONS AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

 
The Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms part of this Annual Report in compliances 
with Regulation 34 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and is annexed marked as Annexure‘A’. 

 

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURE AND ASSOCIATE COMPANY 

 
During the year under review, the Company has no Subsidiary/Joint Venture/ Associate Company. 
 

Performance and financial position of each of the subsidiaries, associates and joint venture 

companies included in the consolidated financial statement 

 
The Company has no subsidiaries, associates and joint venture companies so this point is not applicable on 

the Company. 
 

Details in Respect of Frauds Reported by Auditors under Sub-Section (12) Of Section 143 other than 

those which are Reportable to The Central Government 
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Auditors have not reported any frauds during the year under review. 

 

PUBLIC DEPOSITS 

 

During the year under review, the Company has not accepted any deposit under Section 73 of the    
Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 1975. 

 

EXTRACTS OF THE ANNUAL RETURN 

 
The extract of the Annual Return in Form No.MGT – 9 as per Section 92 of the Companies Act 2013 is 
annexed as Annexure ‘B’. 

 
PARTICULARS REGARDING CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN 
EXCHANGE EARNINGS ANDOUTGO 
 
The information on conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and  
Out go pursuant to Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Rule 8(3) of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 is given in Annexure 'C' to this Report. 
 
CORPORATE GOVERNACE 

 
As per Regulation 15(2) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the  
Compliance with the Corporate Governance Provisions shall not apply in respect of the listed entity having 
paid up Equity Share Capital not exceeding Rupees Ten Crores and Net worth not exceeding Rupees Twenty 
Five Crores as on the last day of the previous financial year. However, as a good governance practice, the 
Directors Report on Corporate Governance is annexed and form part of this report as Annexure 'D'. 

 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

 
Even though the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 regarding Corporate Social Responsibility are not 
attracted to the Company yet the Company has been, over the years, pursuing as part of its corporate 
philosophy, an unwritten CSR policy voluntarily which goes much beyond mere philanthropic gestures and 
integrates interest, welfare and aspirations of the community with those of the Company itself in an 
environment of partnership for inclusive development. 

 

BOARDS DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

 
While selecting Directors, the Company looks for an appropriate balance of skills, experience, independence 
and knowledge to enable them discharge their respective duties and responsibilities effectively. The 
Company has laid down a clear Policy on remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other 
employees. 
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 DECLARATION BY AN INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR(S) 

The Company has received declarations from all the Independent Directors of the Company confirming that 
they meet the criteria of Independence as prescribed under sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015. 

 
APPOINTMENT OF COMPANY SECRETARY 
 
The Company has appointed Ms. Seema Sharma, an Associate Member of the Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India, as Company Secretary of the Company to hold the office w.e.f. 29th June, 2019. During 
the Ms. Sonam Nandwani has resign from the post of Company Secretary w.e.f—31st, December, 
2018.Thereafter  Ms. Chahat Dhawan has been appointed as Company Secretary of the Company to hold 
the office w.e.f. 10th January, 2019 till 29th July, 2019. 
 

   BOARD MEETINGS OF THE COMPANY 

The Board met 6 times during the financial year. During the 10 months period ended 31st March, 2019. 

Board Meetings were held on 16.04.2018, 28.05.2018, 18.07.2018, 18.10.2018, 18.01.2019, 14.08.2018, 

03.09.2018, 14.11.2018, 10.01.2019, 13.02.2019. 

 

   OVERALL REMUNERATION 

 
Details of all elements of remuneration paid to all the Directors are given in the Corporate Governance 
Report. Details of remuneration as required under Section 197(12) of Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 
5 of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is given in this 
report. 

 
   PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARRASMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 

 
The Company has a Policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace and has complied 
with the provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints Committee under the Sexual 
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. No case was 
reported during the year under review.   

 

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

 
Pursuant to Section 134 (3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, with respect to Directors Responsibility 
statement, it is hereby confirmed that:- 
 
(i) In the preparation of the Annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed 

along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any. 
 
(ii) The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the 
state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial  year and of the profit or loss of the 
Company forth at period. 
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(iii) The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 

records in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the 
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities. 

 
(iv) The Directors have prepared the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31st March 2019 on a 

goingconcernbasis. 
 
(v) The Director had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by company and that internal 

financial controls are adequate and operating effectively. 
 

(vi) The Director had devised proper system to ensure compliance with provision of all applicable laws 
and such is adequate and operating effectively. 

 

AUDITORS 

 

i. Statutory Auditors 
 

M/s. Vipin Kumar & Company , Chartered Accountants, the Statutory Auditors of the Company hold the office 
from 32nd Annual Genaral Meeting  until the conclusion of the 37th Annual General Meeting and on such 
remuneration as may be decided by the Board of Directors with mutual consent of the appointee Auditors. 
 
The Company has received letter from them to the effect that their appointment, if made, would be within 
the prescribed limits under Section 139(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 and that they are not disqualified for 
such appointment within the meaning of Section 139 (1) of the said Act. 

 

ii. Secreterial Auditor 
 
The secretarial audit of the Company has been conducted by M/s. V Kumar and Associates, Company 
Secretaries and their report on the secretarial audit for the year under review is annexed hereto is attached 
as ANNEXURE 'F'. 

 

AUDITORS REPORT 

 
All Observations made in the Independent Auditors’ Report and Notes forming part of the Financial 
Statements are self explanatory and no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks have been made by 
the Statutory Auditors in the said Report. 

 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
 

The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any reservation, qualification or adverse remark except that:- 
➢ Since, Company is required to appoint Internal Auditor pursuant to section 138 of the Companies Act, 

2013 read with rule 13 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, But the Company did not appoint any 
Internal Auditor. 

     as mentioned in the secretarial audit report annexed hereto is attached as ANNEXURE 'F'. 
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PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and as per SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015, a 
separate exercise was carried out to evaluate the performance of individual Directors including the 
Chairman of the Board who were evaluated on parameters such as level of engagement and contribution 
and independence of judgment thereby safeguarding the interest of the Company. The performance 
evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board. The performance evaluation 
of the Chairman and the Non Independent Directors was carried out by the Independent Directors. The 
Board also carried out annual performance evaluation of the working of its Audit, Nomination and 
Remuneration as well as Stakeholders Relationship Committee. The Directors expressed their 
satisfaction with the evaluation process. 

 
PARTICULARS OF LOAN, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENT MADE UNDER 186 OF THE COMPANIES 
ACT,2013 
 
The Company has neither given any loan to any persons or body corporate nor given any guarantee or 
provided security in connection with a loan to other body corporate or Persons. The Company has not 
made any investment in the purchase of shares of any associate Company during the year under review. 

 

RELATED PARTY TRNSACTIONS 

 
All the related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were in the ordinary 
course of Company’s business and on arm’s length basis. There are no materially significant related party 
transactions made by the Company with the Promoters, Key Management Personnel or other designated 
persons which may have potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large. However the related 
party transactions are given in Note No.27. 
 

SHARE CAPITAL 

 

A. Increase in Authorised Share Capital and Preferential Allotment of Shares 
 

                  During the year under review, there is no change in Authorised Capital of the Company.  
 
 

B. Issue of equity shares with differential rights 

 
Company has not issued any equity shares with differential rights so no disclosure is required as 
per rule 4 (4) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules 2014 
 

C. Issue of sweat equity shares 
 

Company has not issued sweat equity shares, so no disclosure is required as per rule 8(13) of the 
Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules 2014. 

 

D. Issue of employee stock options 
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Company has not issued employee stock options, so no disclosure is required as per rule 12(9) of the 

Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules 2014 

 

E. Provision of money by Company for purchase of its own share by employees or by trustee for 
the benefit of employees 

 
Company has not made any provision for purchase of its own share by employees or by trustee for the 

benefit of employees so no disclosure is required as per rule 16(4) of the Companies (Share Capital and 

Debentures) Rules 2014. 

 

DETAILS IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERIAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

 
The Company has adequate internal financial control system commensurate with the size of the Company and the 

nature of its business with regards to purchase of Fixed Assets. The activities of the Company do not involve 

purchase of inventories and sale of goods and services. 

For the purposes of effective internal financial control, the Company has adopted various procedures for ensuring 

the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its 

assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 

records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information. 

 

To ensure adequacy of internal financial controls, the procedures adopted by the Company are based on the 

following parameters: 

 

(a) Familiarity with Policies and  Procedures  –  the  related  policies  and  procedures  and  the  changes thereto, 

if any, are communicated to the employees at the time of joining and it is ensured that such person 

understands the policies or procedures correctly. 

(b)  Accountability of Transactions – There is a proper delegation of authorities and responsibilities so as to ensure 

accountability of anytransaction. 

(c) Accuracy & Completeness of Financial Statements/ Reports – For accuracy and completeness of information, 

reconciliation procedure and multiple checking at different level have been adopted. To avoid human error, 

computer software is extensivelyused. 

(d)  Retention and Filing of Base Documents – All the source documents are properly filed and stored in a safe 

manner. Further, important documents, depending upon their significance are also digitized. 

(e) Segregation of Duties – It is ensured that no person handles all the aspects of a transaction. To avoid any 

conflict of interest and to ensure propriety, the duties have been distributed at different levels. 

(f) Timeliness – It is also ensured that all the transactions are recorded and reported in a timely manner. 

 

The procedures are also reviewed by the Statutory Auditors and the Directors of the Company from time to time. 

There has also been proper reporting mechanism implemented in the organization for reporting any deviation from 

the procedures. 
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TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND 
 
Since there was no unpaid/unclaimed dividend declared and paid in past years, the provisions of Section 125 of the 

Companies Act, 2013, do not apply. 

 

SEGMENT 

 
The Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing of Polyester Buttons which are governed by the same set 

of risks and returns and as such are in the same segment. 

 
 RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 

 
Company has implemented proper risk management policy including identification therein of element of risk. 

 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

 

Your Directors wish to place on record and acknowledge their appreciation for the continued support and co- 

operation received from Government agencies and the shareholders. Your Directors also record their appreciation 

for the total dedication of employees at all levels. 

 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors     
For NirajIspat Industries Limited 

 

Place: New Delhi   

Date: 28.08.2019  
                                           Sd/- 

 
                                      Sd/- 

Haryant Kumar Chaudhry                               Chaitanya Chaudhary 
                                                                                                    Director                                                        Director 

                        DIN: 00021795                                          DIN: 06813394 
                                                              Address: KD-46, Kavi Nagar,                 Address: KD-46, Kavi Nagar, 
                                                   Ghaziabad-201002, Uttar Pradesh        Ghaziabad-201002, Uttar Pradesh 
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ANNEXURE 'A' 
 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 
 

1. OPERATING RESULTS OF THECOMPANY 

 
During the Financial Year under consideration the performance of the Company was satisfactory. Net Profit for 

the year 2018-19 stood at Rs 6,554,890 /- as against Net Profit of Rs.9,591,431/- in the year 2017-18. 

Further more the total Revenue from operation for the year ended March 31st, 2019stoodatRs.59,574,378/- 

as compared to Rs. 65,611,797/-  revenue for the year 2017-2018. 

 

2. INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENT 
 

The principal activities of the Company are: 

 
i. The Company carries on the business of manufacturing of polyester buttons in two or four thread holes. 

Used in dresses, sweaters, pouches and shirts, these buttons can be availed in a variety of colors, sizes 

and designs. Due to their numerous advantages, these buttons are widely acknowledged in residential and 

commercial sectors. We are offering these polyester buttonstoourclientsatcost-effectiveprices. 

ii. The Company has enriched with vast industry experience, we are offering an exquisite range of Polyester 

Buttons. At our vendors' end, these buttons are designed using remarkable quality of materials that are 

procured from certified sources of the market. To ensure flawlessness, these buttons are comprehensively 

checked on various parameters by the team. 

 
3. THREATS 

 

I. With the increase in business segment, the competition has increased from Domestic and other 

developedcountries. 

II. Threats for this Industry are very common and every person is aware of the threats and the risks involved 

with thisIndustry. 

 
4. PROSPECT &OUTLOOK 

 
The Company presents the analysis of the Company for the year 2018-2019 & its outlook for the future. This 

outlook is based on assessment of the current business environment. It may vary due to future economic & 

other developments, both in India and abroad. 
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5. RISKS ANDCONCERNS 

 
The Company has taken adequate preventive and precautionary measures to overcome all negative factors 

responsible for low trend to ensure steady growth. 

 

6. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIRADEQUACY 

 
There are well-established procedures for Internal Controls for operations of the Company. The finance & 

audit functions are well equipped with professionally experienced qualified personnel & play important roles in 

implementing the statutory obligations. The Company has constituted Audit Committee for guidance and 

proper control of affairs of the Company. 

 

7. HUMANRESOURCES 

 
Human Resources are highly valued assets at Niraj Ispat Industries Limited. The Company seeks to attract, 

retain and nurture technical & managerial talent across its operations and continues to create, sustain the 

environment that brings out the best in our people with emphasis on training, learning & development. It aims 

at career progression and fulfilling satisfactory needs.  Performance is recognized and rewarded through up 

gradation & job enrichment, performance incentives. 

 
 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors  
                  FOR Niraj Ispat Industries Limited 

 
 
 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 28.08.2019  

                    Sd/- 
 

                                       Sd/- 

                                                                         Haryant Kumar Chaudhry                          Chaitanya Chaudhary 

                                       Director                                                 Director 
                             DIN: 00021795                                     DIN: 06813394 

                                                                         Address: KD-46, Kavi Nagar,           Address: KD-46, Kavi Nagar, 
                                                           Ghaziabad-201002, Uttar Pradesh Ghaziabad-201002, Uttar Pradesh 
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                                                                                                                                                           ANNEXURE 'B' 

                   ANNEXURE TO DIRECTOR S’ REPORT 
 

FORM NO. MGT-9 EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 
                        As on Financial Year Ended on 31stMarch, 2019 

 

[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHERDETAILS: 

 

CIN L27106DL1985PLC021811 

Registration date 19th August, 1985 

Name of the Company Niraj Ispat Industries Limited 

Category  / sub-category  of the Company Company limited by shares 

Address of the Registered office & Contact 

Details 

5140-41/34, F/F Chaudhary Market, Gali Peti 

Wali, Rui Mandi,  Sadar Bazar, New Delhi- 

110006 

Tel: 0120-6526390, 23551821 
 

Email: nirajispatindustries@gmail.com 

Website: www.nirajispat.in 
Whether listed Company Yes 

Name, Address and Contact details of 

Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any 

Skyline Financial Services Private Limited 

D153A, 1st Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, 

Phase I, New Delhi 110020 

Phone: 011- 64732681/82 

Contact Person: Mr. Virender Kumar Rana 

Mobile No: 9818456709 

 

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY 
All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the Company shall be stated:- 

 

S. 
N 
o. 

Name and Description of 
main products/services 

NIC Code of the 
product/service 

% to total turnover of the 
Company 

1 Manufacturing of Polyester Buttons 2220 92.48 
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III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY ANDASSOCIATECOMPANIES 
 

S.No Name & 
Address of the 
Company 

CIN/GLN Holding/ 
Subsidiary 
/Associate 

% of 
shares 
held 

Applicable 
Section 

 N.A N.A N.A. N.A N.A 

 

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage  of Total   Equity) 
 
i. Category-wise Share Holding 

Category 
of 

Shareh
olders 

No. of Shares held at the 
beginning of the year (01.04.2018) 

No. of Shares held at the end of 
the year (31.03.2019) 

% 
Change 
during 
The 
year  Demat Physical Total % of 

Total 
Shares 

Demat Physic
al 

Total % of Total 
Shares 

A. Promoter          

1) Indian          

a) Individual/ 
HUF 

321100 0 321100 53.52 321100 0 321100 53.52       0 

b) Central 
Govt 

00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

c) State 
Govt(s) 

00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

d) Bodies 
Corp 

126400       0 126400 21.06    126400 0 126400 21.06        0 

e) Banks / FI 00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

f) Any Other 00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0       0 

Sub-
total(A)(1):- 

447500     0 447500 74.58 447500 0 447500 74.58 0 

2) Foreign 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

a)NRIs- 
Individua

ls 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

b)Other- 
Individua

ls 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

c) Bodies  
Corp. 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

d) Banks 
/ FI 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

e) Any  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
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Other…. 

Sub-total 
(A)(2):- 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Total 
Shareholding 
of Promoter 
(A)=(A)(1)+(
A)(2) 

447500 0 447500 74.58 447500 0 447500 74.58 +0.00
02 

B. Public 
Shareholdin
g 

         

1. Institutions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

a) Mutual 
Funds 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

b) Banks / FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

c) Central 
Govt 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

d) State 
Govt(s) 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

e) Venture 
Capital 
Funds 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

f) Insurance 
Companie
s 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

g) FIIs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

h) Foreign 
Venture 
Capital 
Funds 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

i) Others 
(specify) 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

 
Sub-total 
(B)(1) 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

2. Non 
Institutions 

         

a) Bodies 
Corp. 

(i) Indian 
(ii)Overseas 

 
0 
 
0 

 
    9970 

 
0 

 
9970 
 
0 

 
  1.66 

 
0 

 
    9860 

 
0 

 
 3110 

 
0 

 
 12970 

 
0 

 
2.16 
 
0 

 
+0.5 

 
0 

b) Individuals 
(i) Individual 
shareholders 
holding 
nominal 

 
 
 
 

 57200 

 
 
 
 

64430 

 
 
 
 

121630 

 
 
 
 

20.27 

 
 
 
 

60340 

 
 
 
 

58290 

 
 
 
 

118630 

 
 
 
 

    19.77 

 
 
 
 

-0.5 
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ii.Shareholding of Promoter 

share capital 
upto Rs. 1 
lakh 

 
(ii) 

Individual 
shareholders 
holding 
nominal 
share capital 
in excess of 
Rs 1 lakh 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
20000 

 
 
 
        
 
 
 
0 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
20000 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
3.33 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
20000          

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
20000 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
3.33 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
0 

c) Others(Spe
cify) 

0 900 900    0.16 0 900 900 0.16 0 

Sub-
total(B)(2) 

77200  75300 152500   25.42 90200 62300 152500 25.42 0 

TotalPublic 
Shareholding 
(B)=(B)(1)+(
B)(2) 

77200 75300 152500 25.42 90200 62300 152500 25.42 0 

C. Shares 
heldbyCusto
dianforGDRs
&ADRs 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Grand Total 
(A+B+C) 

524700 75300 600000 100.00 137700 63200 600000 100.00 0 

S. 
No 

Shareholder’s 
Name 

Shareholding at 
the beginning of 
the year 

Share holding at the end of the year  

  No. of 
Shares 

% of 
total 
Shares 
of the 
compa
ny 

%of 
Shares 
Pledged 
/ 
encumb
er- red 
to total 
shares 

No. of 
Shares 

% of 
total 
Shares 
of the 
compa
ny 

% of 
Shares 
Pledged 
/ 
encumbe 
red to 
total 
shares 

% 
change 
in share 
holding 
during 
the year 

 
1 

Madhu 
Chaudhry 

 
113900 

 
18.98 

 
0 

 
113900 

 
18.98 

 
0 

 
0 
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2 

Neeraj 
Chaudhary 
HUF 

 
 

54300 

 
 

9.05 

 
 

0 

 
 

54300 

 
 

9.05 

 
 

0 

 
 

0 

 
3 

Niraj Steels 
Private 
Limited 

 
 

24600 

 
 

4.1 

 
 

0 

 
 

24600 

 
 

4.1 

 
 

0 

 
 

0 
 
4 

Pickup 
Suppliers 
Private 
Limited 

 
 
 

53900 

 
 
 

8.98 

 
 
 

0 

 
 
 

53900 

 
 
 

8.98 

 
 
 

0 

 
 
 

0 

5 Haryant 
Stainless Steel 
Private 
Limited 

 
 
 

47900 

 
 
 

7.98 

 
 
 

0 

 
 
 

47900 

 
 
 

7.98 

 
 
 

0 

 
 
 

0 

 
6 

Haryant 
Kumar 
Chaudhary 

 
 

35700 

 
 

5.95 

 
 

0 

 
 

35700 

 
 

5.95 

 
 

0 

 
 

0 

 

 
7 

Neeraj 
Chaudhary 

 
61600 

 
10.2
7777
7777

7 

 
0 

 
61600 

 
10.27 

 
0 

 
0 

 
8 

AnuradhaKan
odia 

 
20000 

 
3.33 

 
0 

 
20000 

 
3.33 

 
0 

 
0 

 
9 

Vaishali 
Chaudhry 

 
30400 

 
5.07 

 
0 

 
30400 

 
5.07 

 
0 

 
0 

 
10 

Vaidehi 
Chaudhry 

 
5200 

 
0.87 

 
0 

 
5200 

 
0.87 

 
0 

 
0 
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(ii) ChangeinPromoter’sshareholding(pleasespecifyifthereisnochange) 
 

Sl. 
No 

 Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year 

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year 

  No. of 
shares 

% of total 
shares of 
the 
company 

No. of 
shares 

% of total 
shares of the 
company 

 At the beginning of the year 447500 74.58 447500 74.58 
 Date wise Increase / Decrease in 

Promoters Share holding during 
the year specifying the reasons 
for increase/decrease (e.g. 
allotment/ transfer 

/bonus/sweat 

 
NIL 

 
NIL 

 
NIL 

 
NIL 

 Equity etc.     

 At the end of the Year 447500 74.58 447500 74.58 

 

(iii) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders 

of GDRs andADRs): 

 
Sl. 
No 

Name of Shareholders Shareholdingatthe 
beginningoftheyear 

Increase/ 
Decrease in  
Shareholding 

CumulativeShareholdi
ng duringtheyear 

  No. of 
shares  
at the 
beginning 

% of total 
shares of the 
Company 

 No. of shares  
at the end 

% of total 
shares of 
the 
Company 

1. Vijay Kumar Agarwal 20000 3.33 Nil 20000 3.33 

2. JagmohanNayyar 8400 1.4 Increased 13400 2.23 

3. Karan Nayyar 8000 1.33 Increased  13000 2.16 

4. Neeta Nayyar  -   - Increased 5900 0.98 

5. Ravindra Kumar Garg 5000 0.83 Nil 5000 0.83 

6. Conrado Traders Private 
Limited 

3525 0.59 Nil 3525 0.59 

7. Omolara Textiles Private 

Limited 

3335 0.56 Nil 3335 0.56 

8. Shahab Tariq 3800 0.63 Nil 3800 0.63 

9. Ashok Kapoor 3300 0.55 Nil 3300 0.55 

10. Manoj Kumar Singhal 3140 0.52 Nil 3140 0.52 
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(iv) ShareholdingofDirectorsandKeyManagerialPersonnel 
 

Sl. 
No 

 Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year 1stApril, 2018 

Shareholding at the end of 
the  year 31stMarch, 2019 

 For Each of the 
Directors &KMP 

No. of 
shares 

% of total 
shares of the 
company 

No. of 
shares 

% of total 
shares of the 
company 

1 Haryant Kumar 
Chaudhry 

35700 5.95 35700 5.95 

2 Vaishali 
Chaudhry 

30400 5.07 30400 5.07 

3 Chaitanya 
Chaudhary 

Nil Nil Nil Nil 

4 Anil Kumar 
Sharma 

3000 0.5 3000 0.5 

5 Rajeev Kumar 
Singhal 

Nil Nil Nil Nil 

 

 

V INDEBTNESS 
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment 

 
 Secured Loans 

excluding deposits 
Unsecured 

Loans 
Deposits Total 

Indebtedness 
Indebtness at the beginning 
of the financial year 

I) PrincipalAmount 
II) Interest duebut 

not paid 
III) Interest accrued 

but notdue 

 

 
786,336 

 

 
64,187,445 

 

 
NIL 

 

 
64,973,781 

 
Total (I+II+III) 

 
786,336 

 
64,187,445 

 
NIL 

 
64,973,781 
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Change in Indebtedness 
during the financial year 

• Addition 

• Reduction 

 
 

 
-- 

 (786,336) 

 
 

 
         1,982,762 
   (3,080,492) 

 
 

 
--- 
Nil 

 
 

 
      1,982,762 

(3,866,828) 

Net Change         (786,336) (1,097,730) NIL (1,884,066) 

Indebtedness at the end of 
the financial year 

I) PrincipalAmount 
II) Interest duebut 

not paid 
III) Interest accrued 

but notdue 

 

 
-------- 

 

 
63,089,715 

 

 
NIL 

 

 
 63,089,715 

 
Total (I+II+III) 

 
   NIL 

 
63,089,715 

 
NIL 

 
63,089,715 

 
 

VI. Remuneration of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel Remuneration to Managing Director, 
Whole-time Directors and/or Manager 

 

Sl. 
no 

Particulars  of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Total 
Amount 

 Gross salary 
(a) Salary as per provisions 
contained in section 17(1) ofthe 
Income-taxAct, 
1961 

 

(b) Value of perquisitesu/s 
17(2)  Income-tax  Act, 1961 
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under 
section 17(3) Income- tax Act,1961 

 

 
Haryant Kumar Chaudhry   
Chaitanya Chaudhry 
 
 
 

NIL 

NIL 

 

 
6,00,000 
6,00,000 

 
 
               NIL 

NIL 

 Stock Option - - 
 Sweat Equity - - 
 Commission 

- as % ofprofit 
- others,specify 

- - 

 Others, please specify - - 
 Total (A)  12,00,000 
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 Ceiling as per the Act  - 
 

A. Remuneration  to other Directors: 
 

Sl. 
no. 

Particulars  of Remuneration Name of Directors Total amount 

 Independent Directors 
 
·Fee for attending board 
committee meetings 
· Commission 
-  Others, please specify 

Mr. Anil Kumar Sharma 
Mr. Rajeev Kumar Singhal 

 
 

NIL 
NIL 

 
 
 
 

NIL 
   NIL 

  
Independent Directors 

 
·Fee for attending board 
committee meetings 

· Commission 
-  Others, please specify 

 

Mr. Anil Kumar Sharma 
Mr. Rajeev Kumar Singhal 

NIL 

NIL 

 

 

NI

L 

NI

L 

 
 

B. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD 

 

 Other Non-Executive 
   Directors 

Vaishali Chaudhry  

· Fee for attendingboard 
committee meetings 

                     NIL NIL 

· Commission 
· Others, pleasespecify 

                     NIL NIL 
NIL 

 
 

 
 Total (2) NIL NIL 
 Total (B)=(1+2) NIL NIL 
 Total Managerial 

Remuneration 
NIL NIL 

 Overall Ceiling as per the Act NIL NIL 
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Sl. 
no. 

Particulars of Remuneration Key 
Managerial 
Personnel 

  CEO Company 

Secretary 

CFO Total 

1. Gross salary 
(a) Salary as per provisions containedin 

section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act,1961 
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 
17(2)Income-tax Act, 1961 
(c) Profits in lieu ofsalary 

 

NIL 
 
 
NIL 
NIL 
 

 

1,32,000 
 
 
NIL 
NIL 

 
 

 

8,40,000 
 
 
NIL 
NIL 
 

 

Nil 
 
 
NIL 
NIL 
 

2. Stock Option NIL NIL NIL NIL 

3. Sweat Equity NIL NIL NIL NIL 

4. Commission 

- as % ofprofit 

- others,specify 

 
 
NIL 

 
 
NIL 

 
 
NIL 

 
 
NIL 

5. Others, please specify  
NIL 

 
NIL 

 
NIL 

 
NIL 

 Total NIL 1,32,000 8,40,000 NIL 

 

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/  COMPOUNDING  OFOFFENCES: 
 

Type Section of 
the 
Companies 
Act 

Brief 
Description 

Details of Penalty/ 
punishment/compounding 
Fees imposed 

Authority 
IRD/NCLT/ 
Court 

Appeal made 
if any give 
details 

NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 

 
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors     

FOR Niraj Ispat Industries Limited 
 
 

Place: New Delhi   

Date: 28.08.2019  
 Sd/- 

 
                                 Sd/- 

Haryant Kumar Chaudhry                             Chaitanya Chaudhary 
                                  Director                                                     Director 
                       DIN: 00021795                                               DIN: 06813394 

                                                                     Address: KD-46, Kavi Nagar,                Address: KD-46, Kavi Nagar, 
                                                                           Ghaziabad-201002, Uttar Pradesh             Ghaziabad-201200, Uttar Pradesh 
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ANNEXURE 'C' 
 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
EARNINGS AND OUTGO. 

The Information Under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 (3) of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for the year ended March 31st, 2019 is given here below and forms 
part of the Director’s Report. 

I. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY 

(a) Measures taken: The Company is aware of the importance of conservation of energy and 
continuous efforts are being made to reduce energy cost at all levels. Special attention is being given 
for the use of energy efficient equipments. During the year the CompanyReplaced the regular 
fluorescent tube lights with new energy saver LED tube Lights at factory  

(b) Additional investments and proposal for reduction of consumption of energy:  

The Company already worked on reducing carbon footprint in all its area of operation through 
initiatives like placing the solar panel 40.8 KW which generates approx. 180 units per day.The 
Management is committed to further identify new areas where the conventional equipments can be 
replaced by latest equipments so as to reduce the consumption of various sources of energy. 

(c) Impact of the measures (a) and (b):The Company has achieved reduction in energy costs. 

Total energy consumption and consumption per unit of production in prescribed Form ‘A’ is given 
below: 

FORM – A 

Power and Fuel Consumption 2018-19 

1. Electricity 
Unit (kwhs) 
Total Amount (Rs.) 

 
5,28,654  
42,94,595/- 

2. Own Generation (Through Diesel Generator) 
Cost (Rs.) 

 
4,33,150/- 

     

II. TECHNOLOGY  ABSORPTION 

Efforts made in technology absorption as per Form B is given below: 
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FORM – B 

I. Research and Development (R & D) 
 

1. Specific areas: The R & D activities of the Company are aimed atquality control and 
improvement/up-gradation of the product range. 
2. Benefits derived: Improvement in product quality, development of new value added products 
and cost effectiveness. 
3. Future plan of action: Development of more value added products and making the product 
more cost effective. 
4. Expenditure on R & D: Expenditure on Research & Development are difficult to ascertain as 
the same staff and equipments are used for production and quality control. 

II. Technology Absorption, adoption and innovation: 

1. Efforts made: Sustained efforts are being made towards upgrading the process technology. 

2. Benefits derived: The Company has been able to improve the quality of its existing products 

3. Particulars of technology imported: Nil 

 

III. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO : 
(a) Efforts : Various efforts are being made to explore and secure new export market for Company’s  

products. 

(b) Earning and outgo   :   2018-19  2017-18 

i) Foreign Exchange earning   :                                   NIL          NIL 

ii) Foreign Exchange outgo   :                                  NIL        NIL 

(b) Value of Imports on CIF Basis   2018-19  2017-18 

Capital Goods (in lacs)   :  NIL       50.38 
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ANNEXURE 'D' 

 

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 

Corporate Governance is the set of best practices. Corporate governance refers to the set of systems, 
principles and processes by which a Company is governed. They provide the guidelines as to how the 
Company can be directed or controlled such that it can fulfill its goals and objectives in a manner that 
adds to the value of the Company and is also beneficial for all stakeholders in the long term. 
Stakeholders in this case would include everyone ranging from the Board of Directors, management, 
and shareholders to customers, employees and society. The Corporate Governance is a key element in 
enhancing investor confidence, promoting competitiveness and ultimately improving economic 
growth. 

 
The aim of "Good Corporate Governance" is to ensure commitment of the Board in managing the 
Company in a transparent manner for maximizing long-term value of the Company for its shareholders 
and protection of the rights of the shareholders and your Board of Directors are putting their best 
efforts to fulfill its commitment towards good Corporate Governance. 

 

COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 

Corporate Governance philosophy stems from our belief that corporate governance is a key element in 
improving efficiency and growth as well as enhancing investor confidence. The Corporate Governance 
philosophy is scripted as: 

 

"As a good corporate citizen, the Company is committed to sound corporate practices based on 
conscience, openness, fairness, professionalism and accountability in building confidence of its various 
stakeholders in it thereby paving the way for its long term success." 

 

The Company's philosophy of Corporate Governance is to strengthen the investor's trust and ensures a 
long-term partnership that helps in achieving Company's objectives, meeting its obligations towards 
stakeholders, and is guided by a strong emphasis on transparency, accountability, integrity and 
environment responsibility. 

 

Our Company's framework is designed to enable the Board to provide strategic guidelines for the 
Company the effective over-sight of management. The respective roles and responsibilities of Board 
Members and Senior Executives are clearly defined to facilitate accountability to Company as well as 
itsshareholders.Thisensuresabalanceofauthoritysothatnosingleindividualhasunfetteredpowers. 

 
Our Company has taken adequate steps to form various Committees at the Board level to focus 
attention on crucial issues before placing the same before the Board for consideration. These include 
'Audit Committee' and 'Shareholders/Investors Grievance Committee' Independent Directors are 
appointed not merely to fulfill the listing requirement but for their diverse skills, experience and 
external objectivity that they bring to effectively perform their role to provide strategic direction and 
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guidance and provide constructive support to management by asking the right questions and 
generating quality debates and discussions on major decisions. 

 
The Company is in compliance with all the requirements of the corporate governance code as 
enshrined in Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

 

A. BOARD OFDIRECTORS 
 

The Board provides leadership and strategic guidance, objectively reviews management decisions 
and exercises control over the Company. 

 

i) CATEGORY AND COMPOSITION 

 
In Compliance with the Listing Agreement, the Company has a balanced mix of executive, non- 
executive and Independent Directors to comply with the Regulation 17 of SEBI (Listing Obligation & 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. As on date of this report, the Board of Directors 
consists of 5(Five) Directors, out of which 2 are Executive Directors, 1 is Non- Executive Director and 
2 are Non- Executive & Independent Directors.  The Chairperson of the Company is Non- Executive 
Director. 

 

The composition of Board during the year as follows: 
Name of the Director DIN Designation Category 

Mr. Haryant Kumar 
Chaudhry 

00021795 Director Executive Director 

Mr. Chaitanya Chaudhary 06813394 Director Executive Director 

Ms. Vaishali Chaudhry 01719640 Director Non- Executive Director 

Mr. Anil Kumar Sharma 02664381 Director & 
Chairperson 

Non- Executive & Independent Director 

Mr. Rajeev Kumar Singhal 00284223 Director Non- Executive & Independent Director 
 

ii) BOARDMEETING 
 

The Board meeting is held in every quarter to review the financial results and discuss other issues. 
Besides the quarter, Board meeting are also held whenever required. To conduct a Board meeting 
the Directors are informed by giving a notice in advance and the agenda of Board meeting is also 
dispatched with the notice. The members of Board discussed each agenda in the meeting and take 
decision after having a proper discussion and obtaining views of all members. The Board members 
are free to give their suggestions on any agenda item and can also submit their view for improving 
the performance of Company. 
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During the year Five (10) Board Meetings have taken place 16.04.2018, 28.05.2018, 18.07.2018, 
18.10.2018, 18.01.2019, 14.08.2018, 03.09.2018, 14.11.2018, 10.01.2019, 13.02.201925 

 

        Details of attendance of each Director at various meetings of the Company is as follows: 

 
 

Name 
Director 

of The Designation Category No. of Board 
Meetings 
Attended 

Last 
attended 

AGM 

Mr. Haryant Kumar 
Chaudhry 

Director Executive Director 10 Yes 

Mrs. Vaishali 
Chaudhry 

Director Non-Executive 
Director 

10 Yes 

Mr. Anil Kumar 
Sharma 

Director Non-Executive & 
Independent Director 

10 Yes 

Mr. Chaitanya 
Chaudhry 

Director Executive Director 10 Yes 

Mr. Rajeev Kumar 
Singhal 

Director Non-Executive & 
Independent Director 

10 Yes 

 

Details of equity shares of the Company held by the Directors as on March 31, 2019 is given below: 
 

Name of the Directors Category Number of Equity Shares 

Mr. Haryant Kumar 
Chaudhry 

Executive Director 35700 

Mrs. Vaishali Chaudhry Non-Executive Director 30400 

Mr. Anil Kumar Sharma Non-Executive & Independent 
Director 

3000 

Mr. Chaitanya Chaudhry Executive Director NIL 

Mr. Rajeev Kumar Singhal Non-Executive & Independent 
Director 

NIL 

   

 

➢  Mr. Niraj Chaudhry has been appopinted as  CFO w.e.f  08th  April , 2019 

➢ Mr. Haryant Kumar Chaudhry has been appopinted as  CEO w.e.f 17th April ,2019 
 

B. COMMITTEE OF DIRECTORS AUDITCOMMITTEE: 

An Audit committee is a key element in corporate governance process of any Company. The 
emergence of corporate governance, which refers to the establishment of a structural framework or 
reforming the existing framework to ensure the working of the Company to best serve the interest of  
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all stakeholders, is a vital concept which has become indispensable in the present capital market state 
of affairs so as to safeguard the interest of stakeholders. 

i) BOARD TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 

The composition of audit committee meets the requirements of Regulation 18 of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with Section 177 of the Companies 
Act, 2013. The terms of the reference of Audit Committee include inter alia the following: 

 

Powers of Audit Committee 
 

i. To investigate any activity with in its terms of reference. 
ii. To seek information from any employee. 
iii. To obtain outside legal or other professional advice. 
iv. Tosecure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary. 

 

Key responsibilities of Audit Committee 

 
1. Oversight of the Company's financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information 
to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible. 

 

2. Recommending to the Board, the appointment, re-appointment and, if required, the replacement or 
removal of the statutory auditor and the fixation of audit fees. 

 
3. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors. 

 

4. Reviewing, with the management, the annual/Quarterly financial statements before submission 
to the Board for approval, with particular reference to: 

 
a. Matters required to be included in the Director's Responsibility Statement to be included in 
the Board's report in terms of clause (3) sub clause (c) of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 

 

b. Changes,ifany, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same 
 

c. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management 
 

d. Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings 
 

e. Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating tofinancialstatements. 
 

f. Disclosure of any related party transactions 
 

g. Qualifications in the draft audit report. 
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h. The quality and acceptability of:  

➢ The accounting policies and practices, including without limitation critical accounting policies and 
practices, all alternative accounting treatments within generally accepted accounting principles 
for policies and procedures related to material items that have been discussed with 
management, ramifications of the use of such alternative treatments and the treatment 
preferred by the external auditors; and 

➢ Financial reporting disclosures and changes thereto, including a review of any material items of 
correspondence between the Company and the external auditors; 

 

i. The extent to which the financial statements are affected by any unusual transactions or any off- 
balance sheet arrangements, including any disclosable guarantees, indemnification agreements or 
interests in unconsolidated special purpose entities, in the year and how they are disclosed; 

 

j. the policies and process for identifying and assessing business risks and the management of these 
risks; 

 

k. material misstatements detected by the auditors that individually or in aggregate have not been 
corrected and management's explanations as to why they have notbeenadjusted; 

 

l. possible impairments of the Group'sassets; 
 

m. compliance with financial reporting standards and relevant financial and governance reporting 
requirements; 

 

5. Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an 
issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes 
other than those stated in the offer document/prospectus/notice and the report submitted by the 
monitoring agency monitoring the utilization of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making 
appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up steps inthismatter. 

 

6. Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors and adequacy of 
the internal controlsystems. 

 

7. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal 
audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure 
coverage and frequency of internalaudit. 

 
8. Discussion with internal auditors any significant findings and follow up thereon. 

 

9. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where 
there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and  
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      reporting the matter to the Board. 

10. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of 
auditaswellaspostauditdiscussiontoascertainanyareaofconcern. 

 
11. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture 
holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends)andcreditors. 

 

12. To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism, in case the same is existing. 
 

13. Mandatoryreviewsthefollowinginformation: 
 

i. Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and resultsofoperations; 
ii. Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the audit committee), submitted by 

management; 
iii. Managementletters/lettersofinternalcontrolweaknessesissuedbythestatutoryauditors; 
iv. Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and 
v. The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief internal auditor 

 

14. Overseeing the relationships with the external auditors as follows: 
 

i. To consider the appointment of the external auditors and provide the Board with its 
recommendation to the shareholders on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the external 
auditors approve the audit engagement fees and terms and review annually their activities, findings, 
conclusionsandrecommendations.TheexternalauditorsshallreportdirectlytotheAuditCommittee. 

 

The Audit Committee shall be responsible for ensuring the resolution of any disagreements between 
management and the external auditors regarding financial reporting; 

 
ii. To discuss with the external auditors the nature and scope of the audit (including any significant 
ventures, investments or operations which are not subject to audit) and ensure co-ordination if more 
than one audit firm isinvolved; 

 
iii. To review and monitor the independence of the external auditors and the objectivity and the 
effectiveness of the audit process including reviewing and monitoring the external auditors' quality 
control procedures and steps taken by the external auditors to respond to changes in regulatory and 
other requirements. This review will include a review of the experience and qualifications of the senior 
members of the audit team, including rotational procedures; 

 
iv. To pre-approve the scope and extent of audit and non-audit services provided to the Group by any 
third party in the case of audit services and by the external auditors in the case of audit and permitted 
non-audit services. The Audit Committee may delegate to the Chairman of the Audit Committee(and in  
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his absence another member) the authority to pre-approve any audit or permitted non-audit service to 
be provided by the external auditors provided such approvals are presented to the Audit Committee at 
its next scheduled meeting; 

v. To consider communications from the external auditors on audit planning and findings and on 
material weaknesses in accounting and internal control systems that came to the auditors' attention, 
including a review of material items of correspondence between the Company and the external 
auditors;and 

 

vi. To ensure that there are no restrictions on the scope of the statutory audit; 
 

15. Such other function, as may be assigned by the Board of Directors from time to time or as may be 
stipulated under any law, rule or regulation including the Listing Agreement and the Companies Act, 
2013. 

 

THE COMPOSITION AND MEETING OF AUDIT COMMITTEE: 
 

The Audit Committee of the Company has been constituted as per the requirements of Regulation 18 
of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. Audit Committee consists of three Directors, namely Mr. Rajeev 
Kumar Singhal is Non-Executive & Independent Director, Mr. Anil Kumar Sharma is Non-Executive & 
Independent Director and Mrs. Vaishali Chaudhry is Non-Executive Director. The Constitution of Audit 
Committee also meets the requirements under Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

The Chairman of the Committee is Mr. Anil Kumar Sharma, a Non-Executive & Independent Director 
nominated by the Board. 

 

The Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditors are also the invitee to the meetings. 
 

During the year under review, the Committee met Four times on 28.05.2018, 14.08.2018, 14.11.2018, 
13.02.2019. 
 
The gap between two meetings did not exceed four months. Constitution of Audit Committee and 
other related information as on 31stMarch, 2019 are as under: 

 

The Composition of Audit Committee is as follows: 
 

Name of the Director Category Number of meetings 
during the financial year 
2018 -19 

Held Attended 

Mrs.  Vaishali Chaudhry Non-Executive Director 4 4 

Mr.   Anil Kumar Sharma Non-Executive 
Director 

& Independent 4 4 
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Mr.   Rajeev Kumar Singhal Non-Executive 
Director 

& Independent 4 4 

   STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE: 
 

The stakeholders’ relationship committee is constituted in line with the provisions of Regulation 20 of 
SEBI Listing Regulation. 

 

The broad terms of reference includes the following: 
• Redressal of shareholder and investor complaints including, but not limiting itself to transfer of 
shares and issue of duplicate share certificates, non-receipt of balance sheet, non-receipt of declared 
dividends, etc.,and 
• Monitoring transfers, transmissions, dematerialization, rematerialization, splitting and 
consolidation of shares issued by the Company. 

 

Composition, meetings and attendance 
 

In compliance with the Regulations of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013, the Company has constituted an Investor Grievance Committee consisting of majority of 
Non-Executive Independent Directors. As on 31stMarch, 2019, Committee consists of three members 
Comprising of Mr. Anil Kumar Sharma is Non-Executive & Independent Director, Mrs. Vaishali 
Chaudhry, Non-Executive Director and Mr. Rajeev Kumar Singhal is Non-Executive & Independent 
Director under the Chairmanship of an Independent & Non Executive Director viz Anil Kumar Sharma. 

 
 

Name of the Director Category Number of meetings 
during the financial year 
2018 -19 
Held Attended 

Mrs.  Vaishali Chaudhry Non-Executive Director 4 4 

Mr.   Anil Kumar Sharma Non-Executive 
Director 

& Independent 4 4 

Mr.   Rajeev Kumar Singhal Non-Executive 
Director 

& Independent 4 4 

 

The Composition of Stakeholders Relationship Committee is as follows: 

During the year under review, the Committee met Four times on 16.04.2018, 18.07.2018, 18.10.2018, 
18.01.2019 
The Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the Committee. 
 

   Name, designation and address of Compliance Officer: 
Ms. Seema Sharma 
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
S-7 Param Puri, Uttam Nagar, 
New Delhi 110059                                                              36 
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 Share Transfers are processed and duly approved by the committee. Investors Grievances are placed           
before the committee. 

 
There were no Shareholder/investors complaints pending at the end of the financial year ended on 
31.03.2019. 

 

Role and Responsibilities 
 

The role of Stakeholders Relationship Committee includes the review of following: 
 

• To monitor the process of expeditious transfer of sharesordebentures. 
• To monitor and review the shareholders complaints related to transfer of shares, non-receipt of 
Balance Sheet, non receipt of declareddividendetc. 
• To monitor and review from time to time the systems/ procedures relating to processing of transfer 
of shares, dematerialization/ re-materialization of share certificates, re-issued of share certificates 
againstsplit,cancellation,consolidationandlostsharecertificatesetc. 
• To investigate any activity and seek information from any employee of the Company, in discharging  
its duties. 
• To obtain outside legal or professional services, if consider necessary. 
• To fix the record date for the purposes as required under the Companies act and/or listing 
agreement. 
• To consider and approve issue of duplicate share certificate in lieu of those reported lost, misplaced, 
torn, mutilated etc. 
• Any other powers which are specifically delegated by the Board from timetotime. 

 
  NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 
 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company has been constituted as per the 
requirements of Regulation 19 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. Audit Committee consists of three 
Directors, namely Mr. Rajeev Kumar Singhal is Non-Executive & Independent Director, Mr. Anil Kumar 
Sharma is Non-Executive & Independent Director and Mrs. Vaishali Chaudhry is Non-Executive Director. 
The Constitution of Audit Committee also meets the requirements under Section 178 of the Companies 
Act, 2013. 

 

The Chairman of the Committee is Mr. Anil Kumar Sharma, a Non-Executive & Independent Director 
nominated by the Board. 

 

The Statutory Auditors are also the invitee to the meetings. 
 

During the year under review, the Committee met one time on 10.01.2019. 
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The gap between two meetings did not exceed four months. Constitution of Audit Committee and 
other related information as on 31st March, 2019 are as under: 

 
The Composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee is as follows: 

 

Name of the Director Category Number of meetings 
during the financial year 
2018-19 

Held Attended 

Mrs.  Vaishali Chaudhry Non-Executive Director 1 1 

Mr.   Anil Kumar Sharma Non-Executive 
Director 

& Independent 1 1 

Mr.   Rajeev Kumar Singhal Non-Executive 
Director 

& Independent 1 1 

  
MEANS OF COMMUNICATIONS 

 

The quarterly, half-yearly and annual results of the Company are displayed on the Company’s website 
“www.nirajispat.in”.  
 

DISCLOSURES  
 
CODE OF CONDUCT: 

As per SEBI (LODR), 2015, the Board of the Company has laid down Code of Conduct for all the Board 
members of the Company and Senior Management as well and the same has been posted on Website 
of the Company. Annual Compliance Report for the year ended 31st March, 2019 has been received 
from all the Board members and senior management of the Company regarding the compliance of all 
the provisions of Code of Conduct. Declaration regarding compliance by Board members and senior 
management personnel with the Company's Code of Conduct is hereby attached as annexure to this 
report. 

MATERIAL NON-LISTED SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES: 
 

SEBI (LODR), 2015 defines a 'material non-listed Indian subsidiary' as an unlisted subsidiary, 
incorporated in India, whose turnover or net worth (i.e. paid-up capital and free reserves) exceeds 20% 
of the consolidated turnover or net worth respectively, of the listed holding Company and its 
subsidiaries in the immediately preceding accounting year. 
 
Company does not have any such subsidiary during the accounting year under review. 
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RECONCILIATION OF SHARE CAPITAL AUDIT REPORT 

 

A qualified practicing Company Secretary carried out a share capital audit to reconcile the total 
admitted equity share capital with the National Securities Depository Limited (“NSDL”) and the Central 
Depository Services (India) Limited (“CDSL”) and the total issued and listed equity share capital. The 
audit report confirms that the total issued / paid-up capital is in agreement with the total number of 
shares in physical form and the total number of dematerialized shares held with NSDL and CDSL. 

 

RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
The Company has in place a Risk Management policy, which lays down a robust and dynamic process 
for identification and mitigation of risks. This policy has been adopted by the Audit Committee as well 
as the Board of Directors of the Company. The Audit Committee reviews the risk management and 
mitigation plan from time to time. 

 
POSTAL BALLOT 
 
During the year under review, we have not conducted any postal ballot in pursuance of Section 108 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Passing of the Resolution by Postal Ballot) Rules, 2001. 

 

STATUTORY DISCLOSURES 
 

No transactions of material nature have been entered into by the Company with any of the promoters, 
Directors, their related Companies, firms, subsidiaries or relatives etc. that may have a potential 
conflict with interest of the Company. The Company has not been penalized, nor have any strictures 
been passed by the Stock Exchanges, SEBIetc. 

 

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION 
 

Registered Office: 
5140-41/34, F/F  Chaudhry Market, Gali Peti wali, Rui Mandi, Sadar Bazar, New Delhi- 110006 
Tel: 0120-6526390, 23551821 
E-Mail: nirajispatindustries@gmail.Com Website: www.nirajispat.in 

 

GENERAL MEETING:- 
Location and time for the last 3 AGMs were as follows:- 

 

Particulars FY 2016-2017 FY 2017-2018 FY 2018-2019 
Date and time 31st August, 2017, 

10:00 A.M. 
29th  September, 2018, 
10:00 A.M. 

30th  September, 2019, 
02:00 P.M. 

mailto:nirajispatindustries@gmail.Com
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Venue 5140/41/34 Chaudhry 
Market, Gali Peti wali, 
Sadar Bazar, New Delhi- 
110006 

5140/41/34 Chaudhry 
Market, Gali Peti wali, 
Sadar Bazar, NewDelhi- 
110006 

5140/41/34 Chaudhry 
Market, GaliPetiwali, 
Sadar Bazar, NewDelhi- 
110006 

Special Resolution No No Yes 

 

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
Date:30th September,2019 
Time: 02.00 PM 

Venue: 5140-41/34, F/F, Chaudhry Market, Gali Peti Wali, Rui Mandi, Sadar Bazar, New Delhi -110006 
 

FINANCIAL CALENDAR 2018-19(Quarterly Results) 
First Quarterly Results ending 30th June 2018: 14.08.2018 
Second Quarterly Results ending 30th September, 2018: 14.11.2018 
Third Quarterly Results ending 31st December, 2018: 13.02.2019 
 Fourth QuarterResults ending 31st March, 2019: 30.05.2019 
 
DATE OF BOOK CLOSURE: 
21st September, 2019 to 29thSeptember, 2019 (both days inclusive) 

 
LISTING ON STOCK EXCHANGE 

 
Equity Shares of the Company are listed on“National Stock Exchange of India Limited” Exchange Plaza, 
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra East, Mumbai-400051 

 

An annual listing fee for the financial year 2018-2019 has been paid to the above Stock Exchanges. The 
Company has also paid annual custodial fees for financial year 2018-19 to National Securities Depository 
Limited (NSDL)  

 

EQUITY CODE: 

National Stock Exchange NIRAJISPAT 

International Securities  

Identification Number  

(ISIN) of Equity Shares 

INE326T01011 

 

 
CORPORATE IDENTIFICATION NUMBER: L27106DL1985PLC021811 

 

REGISTRAR AND SHARE TRANSFER AGENT: 
Skyline Financial Services Private Limited D-153, 
1st Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase – 1, New 
Delhi – 110 020 
Telephone: 011-64732681-88   



 
 
NIRAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
 

 

Fax: 011-26812682 
E-mail: virenr@skylinerta.com 

LOCATION OF PLANTS 
D- 10, Industrial Area, 
Bulandshahar Road, Ghaziabad 
Email: Chaudhrygroups@yahoo.com 

 
ADDRESS FOR CORRESPONDENCE 
Niraj Ispat Industries Limited 
Registered Office: 
5140-41/34 F/F, Chaudhry Market, Gali 
Peti wali, Rui Mandi, Sadar Bazar, New 
Delhi-110006 
Email: nirajispatindustries@Gmail.Com 

 

Corporate Office: 
Chaudhry Cinema Building, 
19, G.T. Road Ghaziabad-201009, Uttar Pradesh 

 

DECLARATION 
 

None of the Director of the Company is a Director of more than 20 Companies and member of more 
than 10 committees or Chairman of more than 5 committees across all companies in which he is a 
Director. 

 
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

NIRAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 28.08.2019  

                                            Sd/- 
 

                                      Sd/- 

                                                                     Haryant Kumar Chaudhry                         Chaitanya Chaudhary 
                                 Director                                                   Director 
                     DIN: 00021795     DIN: 06813394 

                                                                 Address: KD-46, Kavi Nagar,              Address: KD-46, Kavi Nagar, 
   Ghaziabad-201002, Uttar Pradesh    Ghaziabad-201002,Uttar Pradesh 
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Annexure –‘E’ 

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY 

 
This Nomination and Remuneration Policy is being formulated in compliance with Section 178 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read along with the applicable rules thereto, as amended from time to time. This 
policy on nomination and remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior 
Management has been formulated by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC or the 
Committee) and has been approved by the Board of Directors.  

 

DEFINITIONS 
“Remuneration” means any money or its equivalent given or passed to any person for services rendered       

by him and includes perquisites as defined under the Income-tax Act, 1961;  

 

“Key Managerial Personnel” means:  

(i) Managing Director, or Chief Executive Officer or Manager and in their absence, a Whole-time  

Director;  

(ii) Chief Financial Officer;  

(iii) Company Secretary; and  

(iv) such other officer as may be prescribed.  

 

“Senior Managerial Personnel” mean the personnel of the company who are members of its core 
management team excluding Board of Directors. Normally, this would comprise all members of 
management of rank equivalent to General Manager and above, including all functional heads.  

 

OBJECTIVE 

The objective of the policy is to ensure that  
           • the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retainand  
 motivate directors of the quality required to run the company successfully;  
          • relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance  
             benchmarks; and  
          • remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel and senior management involvesa  

             balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance              
objectives appropriate to the working of the company and its goals.  
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Role of the Committee: 

       The role of the NRC will be the following:  

• To formulate criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a 
Director.  

• To formulate criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board.  

• To identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in Senior 
Management in accordance with the criteria laid down in this policy.  

• To carry out evaluation of Director’s performance.  

• To recommend to the Board the appointment and removal of Directors and SeniorManagement.  

• To recommend to the Board policy relating to remuneration for Directors, Key Managerial 
Personnel and Senior Management.  

• To devise a policy on Board diversity, composition, size.  

• Succession planning for replacing Key Executives and overseeing.  

• To carry out any other function as is mandated by the Board from time to time and/ or enforced 
by any statutory notification, amendment or modification, as may be applicable.  

• To perform such other functions as may be necessary or appropriate for the performance of its 
duties.  

 

APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTOR, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND SENIOR 
PERSONNEL AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT 

 

(a) The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and experience of 
the person for appointment as Director, KMP or at Senior Management level and recommend his / her 
appointment, as per Company’s requirements.  
 

(b) A person should possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience w.r.t. the position for 
which his/her appointment is considered. The Committee has authority to decide whether 
qualification, expertise and experience possessed by a person is sufficient/ satisfactory for the 
position.  

 

(c) The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person as its Managing 
Director, Whole-time Director or Manager who has attained the age of seventy years.  

 

Provided that the term of the person holding this position may be extended beyond the age of  

seventy years with the approval of shareholders by passing a special resolution.  
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TERM / TENURE 

a) Managing Director/Whole-time Director: 

The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its Managing Director, Whole-time Director or 
Manager for a term not exceeding five years at a time. No re-appointment shall be made earlier than 
one year before the expiry of term.  

b) Independent Director 

An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive years on the Board of the 
Company and will be eligible for re-appointment on passing of a special resolution by the Company 
and disclosure of such appointment in the Board's report.  

No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms, but such Independent 
Director shall be eligible for appointment after expiration of three years of ceasing to become an 
Independent Director.  

Provided that an Independent Director shall not, during the said period of three years, be appointed in 
or be associated with the Company in any other capacity, either directly or indirectly.  

 

EVALUATION 

The Committee shall carry out evaluation of performance of Director, KMP and Senior Management 
Personnel yearly or at such intervals as may be considered necessary.  

 

REMOVAL 

The Committee may recommend with reasons recorded in writing, removal of a Director, KMP or 
Senior Management Personnel subject to the provisions and in compliance of the Companies Act, 

2013, rules and regulations made there under and the policy of the Company.  
 

RETIREMENT 

The Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall retire as per the applicable provisions of 
the Act and the prevailing policy of the Company. The Board will have the discretion to retain the 
Director, KMP, Senior Management Personnel in the same position/ remuneration or otherwise even 
after attaining the retirement age, for the benefit of the Company in compliancewith the provisions of 
the Act. 36 

 

POLICY FOR REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS/KMP/SENIOR MAN POLICY FOR REMUNERATION TO 
DIRECTORS/KMP/SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL AGEMENT PERSONNEL 

 

(1) Remuneration to Managing Director/ Whole- Remuneration to Managing Director/ Whole---time 
Directors time Directors: 

(a) The Remuneration/ Commission etc. to be paid to Managing Director/ Whole-time Directors/                         
Manager etc. shall be governed as per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made  
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there under or any other enactment for the time being in force and the approvals obtained from 
the Members of the Company. 

 

(b) The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall make such recommendations to the Board 
of Directors, as it may consider appropriate with regard to remuneration to Managing Director/ 
Whole-time Directors.  

  

(2) Remuneration to Non- (2) Remuneration to Non--- Executive/ Executive/ Executive/ 

Independent Directors: Independent Directors: Independent Directors:  
(a) The Non-Executive / Independent Directors may receive sitting fees and such other 
remuneration as permissible under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013. The amount of sitting 
fees shall be such as may be recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and 
approved by the Board of Directors.  

 

(b) All the remuneration of the Non- Executive/ Independent Directors (excluding remuneration 
for attending meetings as prescribed under Section 197 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013) shall be 
subject to ceiling/ limits as provided under Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under or 
any other enactment for the time being in force. The amount of such remuneration shall be such 
as may be recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approved by the 
Board of Directors or shareholders, as the case may be.   

 

(c) An Independent Director shall not be eligible to get Stock Options and also shall not be eligible 
to participate in any share based payment schemes of the Company.  

 

(d) Any remuneration paid to Non- Executive /Independent Directors for services rendered which 
are of professional in nature shall not be considered as part of the remuneration for the purposes 
of clause (b) above if the following conditions are satisfied:  

 

i) The Services are rendered by such Director in his capacity as the professional; and  

ii) In the opinion of the Committee, the director possesses the requisite qualification for the 
practice of that profession.  

 

  (3) Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel and Se (3) Remuneration to Key Managerial 
Personnel and Senior Management: Management: 

 

(a) The remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management shall consist of fixed pay 
and incentive pay, in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.  
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(b) The Fixed pay shall include monthly remuneration, employer’s contribution to Provident Fund, 
contribution to pension fund, pension schemes, etc. as decided from to time.  

 

(c) The Incentive pay shall be decided based on the balance between performance of the Company 
and performance of the Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management, to be decided 
annually or at such intervals as may be considered appropriate 

 

       IMPLEMENTATION 

The Committee may issue guidelines, procedures, formats, reporting mechanism and manuals in 
supplement and for better implementation of this policy as considered appropriate. The Committee 
may delegate any of its powers to one or more of its members. 
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO) / CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO) CERTIFICATION 
 

I, Niraj Chaudhry, CFO, of Niraj Ispat Industries Limited, to the best of my knowledge and belief 
hereby certify that: 

 

(a) I have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statements for the year and that to the 
best of my knowledge andbelief: 

i) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or 
containstatementsthatmightbemisleading; 

ii) These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in 
compliancewithexistingaccountingstandards,applicablelawsandregulations 

b) There are no transactions entered into by the Company during the year that are fraudulent, 
illegal or violative of the Company's Code of Conduct; 

c) I accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting 
and have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to 
financial reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies 
in the design and operations of such internal controls, if any, of which I am aware and the steps 
we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies. 

d) I have indicated to the auditors and the Audit Committee: 
(i) Significant changes in the internal control over financial reporting during the year under 

reference; 
(ii) Significant changes in the accounting policies during the year and that the same has been 

disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and 
(iii) Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if 

any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the Company's internal 
control system over financial reporting. 

                                                                                                                        By Order of the Board of Directors 
  FOR NIRAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 28.08.2019                                                                                                                                                                                       

                         Sd/- 
Name: Niraj Chaudhry                                 

Designation: CFO 
Address: KD-46, Old Kavi Nagar, 

Ghaziabad-201002, U.P. 
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DECLARATION REGARDING COMPLIANCE BY BOARD MEMBERS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT 
PERSONNEL WITH THE COMPANY'S CODE OF CONDUCT  

 

This is to confirm that the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its employees including the 
Managing Director. The Code of Conduct as adopted is available on the Company's website. I confirm 
that the Company has in respect of the Financial Year ended March 31, 2019, received from the Senior 
Management team of the Company and the members of the Board, a declaration of Compliance with 
the Code of Conduct as applicable to them. 

 

For the purpose of this declaration, Senior Management Team means the Presidents, Sr. Vice 
Presidents and Vice President Cadre as on March 31, 2019. 

 

 

 

                                                                                                                                    By Order of the Board  

      Niraj Ispat Industries   Limited  

 

                                  Sd/- 
Haryant Kumar Chaudhry 

    Director 
                                DIN: 00021795     Address: KD-46, Kavi Nagar, 

                                       Ghaziabad-201002, Uttar Pradesh     

 

 

 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
48



 
 
NIRAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
 

 

ANNEXURE 'F' 
 
 

FORM NO. MR-3 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2019 

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

   
To, 

 
  The Members, 

Niraj Ispat Industries Limited, 
5140-41/34 F/F Chaudhry Market,  
Gali Petiwali, Rui Mandi, Sadar Bazar,  
Delhi -110006 

 
We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 
adherence to good corporate practices by Niraj Ispat Industries Limited (hereinafter called the 
Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me/us a reasonable basis for 
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 

 
Based on our verification of the Niraj Ispat Industries Limited books, papers, minute books, forms and 
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the 
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, 
We hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial 
year ended on 31st March, 2019 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that 
the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the 
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by Niraj Ispat Industries Limited (“the Company”) for the financial year ended on 31st 
March, 2019 according to the provisions of: 

 
(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules madethereunder; 
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules madethere  under; 
(iii)  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framedthereunder; 
(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the 

extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial 
Borrowings; 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):- 
a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and  

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 
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b. TheSecuritiesandExchangeBoardofIndia(IssueofCapitalandDisclosureRequirements) 
Regulations,2009; 

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme andEmployee 
Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines,1999; 

d. The Securities and Exchange Board  of India(Issue and Listing  of  Debt 
Securities)Regulations, 2008; 

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 
Regulations,1993 regarding  the Companies Act and dealing with client; 

f. The Securities  and Exchange Board of India(Delisting of Equity Shares)Regulations,2009,and 
g. TheSecuritiesandExchangeBoardofIndia(BuybackofSecurities)Regulations,1998; 

 

(v)  The other applicable laws on this Company are as follows: 
 

a. Factories Act,1948 

b. Industrial DisputeAct,1947 
c. The Payment of Wages Act,1936 
d. The Minimum Wages Act,1948 
e. Employees’ State Insurance Act,1948 
f. The Payment of Bonus Act,1965 
g. The Payment of Gratuity Act,1972 
h. The Contract Labour (Regulation & Abolition) Act,1970 
i. The Maternity Benefit Act,1961 
j. The Child Labour( Prohibition & Regulation )Act,1986 
k. The Industrial Employment (Standing Order) Act,1946 
l. The Employee Compensation Act,1923 
m. The Apprentices Act,1961 
n. Equal Remuneration Act,1976 
o. TheEmploymentExchange(CompulsoryNotificationofVacancies)Act,1956  

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses ofthefollowing: 

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company SecretariesofIndia. 
(ii) SEBI(ListingObligationsandDisclosureRequirements)Regulations,2015. 
(iii) EquityListingAgreementuptotheextentapplicable. 

 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned as abovesubject to the following observations: 
 

• Since, Company is required to appoint Internal Auditor pursuant to section 138 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with rule 13 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, But the Company did not 
appoint any Internal Auditor. 
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We further report that: 
 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, 
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of 
Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the 
provisions of the Act. 

 

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on 
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further 
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful 
participation at the meeting. 

 

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded as 
part of the minutes. 

 
We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with 
the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, 
regulations and guidelines. 

 

We further report that during the audit period the company got listed at National Stock Exchange of 
India. 

 
 
 

Date:-28.08.2019           Sd/- 
Place:-NewDelhi V Kumar and Associates 

FCS No: - 8976 
CP No: - 10438 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure 'I' and form part of 
an integral part of this report. 
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Annexure 'I' 

 

To, 
The Members, 
Niraj Ispat Industries Limited, 
5140-41/34 F/F Chaudhry Market, Gali Peti wali 
Rui Mandi, Sadar Bazar, Delhi – 110006 

 
 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

 
Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on this secretarial record based on our audit. 

 

We have the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about 
the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to 
ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial record. We believe that the processes and 
practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

 

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of the 
accounts of the company. 

 

Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of 
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc 

 

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards 
is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on 
test basis. 

 
The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to future viability of the company nor of the 
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 
 
 

Date:-28.08.2019  Sd/- 
Place: -New Delhi V Kumar and Associates 

   FCS No: - 8976 
CP No: - 10438 
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----------------------------------- Tear Here ----------------------------------- 
 
 

34TH Annual General Meeting 
 

 
Name of the Shareholder (in Block Letter)  : ………………………………………………………………  
Regd.  Folio No. /DP. Id/ Client Id  : ……………………………………………………………....  
Name of the Proxy (s) (in Block Letter)         : ………………………………………………………………  
(to be filled in, if a proxy attends instead  
of a member) 
No. of Shares held    : ……………………………………………………………….         
 
I certify that I am a registered Shareholders/Proxy for the registered shareholder of the 
Company.                                                                                                                                                             

 

I hereby record my presence at the 34thAnnual General Meeting of the company to be held 

on Monday, 30thSeptember, 2019 at 02.00 P.M. at 5140-41/34, F/F Chaudhary Market Gali 
Peti Wali, Rui Mandi, Sadar Bazar Delhi 110006 

 

…………………………………………………                                                                 

…………………………………… 

Member’s/Proxy’s Name in BLOCK Letters                                                           Member’s/Proxy’s 
Signature 

 

Note: 

Please fill in this attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the Meeting Hall. 

Member’s Signatures should be in accordance with the specimen signatures registered with 
the Company 

Please bring your copy of the Annual Report for reference at the Meeting  

 

*   Applicable for Members holding shares in physical form. 
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Form No. MGT-11 
Proxy Form 

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 

 
CIN: L27106DL1985PLC021811 
Name of the Company: Niraj Ispat Industries Limited 
Registered Office: 5140-41/34, F/F Chaudhary Market Gali Peti Wali, Rui Mandi, Sadar 
Bazar Delhi 110006 
 
 
Name of the Member(s) : 
 
Registered Address : 
 
E-mail ID : 
 
Folio No/DPID No. : 
 
Client ID No. : 
 

 
I/We, being the member(s) of ………………….. shares of the above named company, hereby appoint. 
 
1. Name………………………………………………………..,E- mail ID………………………………………… 
 
Address ………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 
Signature…………………………., or failing him/her 
 
2.Name………………………………………………………..,E- mail ID………………………………………… 
 
Address ………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 
Signature…………………………., or failing him/her 
 
3. Name………………………………………………………..,E- mail ID………………………………………… 
 
Address ………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 
Signature……………………                                                                                                                                                                                  
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as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 34th Annual 
General Meeting of the company, to be held on Monday, the 30th September, 2019 at 02.00 PM at 
5140-41/34, F/F Chaudhary Market Gali Peti Wali, Rui Mandi, Sadar Bazar Delhi 110006, and at 
any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below: 
 
 
ORDINARY BUSINESS 
 
 

1) Adoption of the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 
31st March 2019 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors 
thereon. 

 

2) Re-appointment of Anil Kumar Sharma as Independent Director. 
 

            

Affix 
Revenue 
Stamp 
 

 
 
 
Signed this………….. day of…………………2019 
 
 
 
Signature of Shareholder      Signature of Proxy holder(s) 
 
 
 
Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered 
Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting. 
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Chartered Accountants

NIRAJ ATI TRIES Ll

BA
PARTICULARS

Note. As at As at

No. 31.03.2019 34.03.2018

T

{1) Non-currentassets

Property, plant and equipment
4 23,595,131 25407,548

Financialassets
Investment

2 2.268.795 2271.085

Other nen-current assets
3 4.056.117 4.056.117

Total - Non current assets
26,921,043 28,734,730_

2 "

inventories
4 1,016,044 2,395,234

Financial Assets

Trade recemabies
5 9,780,954 §,189,307

Cash andcash equivalents
6 4,513,014 4,358,937

Other balances with banks
. - -

Other current assets
7 423,785,557 124,401 945

Total - Current assets
136,095,866 136,045,422

TOTAL - ASSETS

163,016,910 464,780,153

HE LIABILITIES

(
3
)

Equity
Equity share capital

8 8,000,000 6,000,000

Other equity
S 82,693,961 76,139,071

Tota! - Equity
88,693,961 82,139,071

nt liabiliti

Financial liabilities

Borrowings
10 63,089,745 64,973,761

Provisions.

- -

Deffered tax liabilities (net)
44 2,334KT 2,606,891

Total - Noncurrent liabilities
65,424,082 67,580,672

cr liabili

Financial abaites

Borrowings
12 . 7

Trade payables
13 5,083,455 10,043,197

Provisions
44 2,141,600 3,577,000

Other current kabsities
15 a 4.676402 4 440,243

Total - Currentliabilities
8,898,866| 45,060,410

TOTAL - EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
| 463,016,909 “464,780,153

Gee accompanying notes tc the Financial. Statements

As per our report of even date attached
For @ ON BEHALFOF BOARD

For VIPIN KUMAR & COMPANY
Far NIRAJ SPAT INDUSTRIES.LTO:

Chartered Acco antants.

Fem Regn. No. 0021230
BY

ee
aX

Cake a s

Place: Saharanpur ar
AGARWAL)

a@udnry} {Chaitanya Chaudhry}

Rated: 30th May.2019
FCA

/Y Director
Director:

MNo, 071279
in O00Z1795

Din 06843394
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Chartered Accountants

NIRAJ ATI TRIES Ll

BA
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For VIPIN KUMAR & COMPANY

Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No,0027290

Place: Saharanpur ee RWAL)

Dated: 20th May,2019 FCA x
haudhry)
Director

Chartered Accountams

Ni ISPAT INDUSTRIES LIMITE

TE T Pr TAI

FOR THE YEA! 31st MARCH

PARTICULARS
Note Asat As at

No. 34.03.2019 31.03.2018

| Revenue fromoperations
16 69,574,376 65.611,797

{| Other Income
17 4,837,708 6,150,358

lit Total income
64,412,086 71,762,155

WV Expenses

(a) Cost of raw materials consumed
18 32,297,629 36,569,131

ib} Changesin Inventories of Finished Goods,

work-in-progress and Stock-in-trade
19 807,151 622,361

(c) Employee Benefit Expenses
20 4,737374 4,887,005

(a) Finance Cost
21 2,545,236 2,423,362

(e) Depreciation & Amortization Expenses
1 3,034,554 3,108,588

(f) Excise Duty expense
- 432,064

{g) Other Expenses
22 72.578,914 416,988,559

Total expenses
55,940,857 §9,031,051

V. Profit before exceptional item & tax (Hi - tv)
$,471,229 42,731,104

VL ExceptionalItems

Vil Profiti{loss) before tax (V-V1)
8,471,229 42,731,104

Vill Tax Expenses.

Income tax for previous year
47,863 165,039

Current Tax
2,141,000 3,577,000

Deferred Tax
(272,524) (603,366)

IX Profit for the years (VI-VIIl)
6,554,890 9,594,431

X Other Comprehensive Income for the period

A. {i} tems that will nat be reclassified to profitor 1oss

(ii) Income tax relating to tems that will not be reclassified

to profit or loss

8 (i) tems that will be reclassified to profit or loss

{e) Income tax relating to tems that will be reclassified

to profit or loss

Total Other Comprehaensive inc
ome

XI Total Comprehensive income forthe year
6,554,890 9,591,431

Xi Earnings per share

: Basic and Diluted
10.92 15.99

Xlll Notes formingpart of financial statement

See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

As per our report of even date attached
For & ON BEHALF OF BOARD

For NIRAJISPAT INDUSTRIES LJD.

ov

M.No. 071279 pin 00021795 Din

(Chaitanya Chavdhsy)

Director

06813394 
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For VIPIN KUMAR & COMPANY

Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No,0027290
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Dated: 20th May,2019 FCA x
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Director

Chartered Accountams
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For VIPIN KUMAR & COMPANY

Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No,0027290
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Director

Chartered Accountams
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Chartered Accoumants

A T INDUSTRIES LU

STATE TOF C |! INE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3ist MARCH 2043

A, Equity Share Capital

Equity Shares of Rs. 40/- each issued, Subscribed and fullypaid No. of Amount

Shares

As at April 1, 2017

600,000 6,006,060

Issued duning the year
> >

As at March, 31 2018
600,000 6,000,000

issued during the year

2 5

As at March, 31 2019
600,000 6,000,000

B, Other Equity General Retained

Reserve Earnings bhi:

As at April 1, 2017
7,683,469 58,864,171 66,547,640

Profit for the yeas
$591,431 9,591,431

Transfer within equity
1,800,000 (1,800,000) -

Other Comprehensive Income
- : :

Total Comprensive inco
me

1,800,000 7,791,431 $,591,431

-Final dividend on aquity Shares
- - -

-Tax on Final dividend on equity Shares
- - -

As at March 34,2018
9,483,469 66,655,602 76,139,074

Profit for the year
- 6,554,890 6,654,690

Transfer veithin equity
1,800,000 (1,800,000) -

Other Comprehensive Income
- - -

Total Comprensive income
4,800,000 4,754,890 6,554,890

Final. dividend on equity Shares
- - .

-Tax on Final dividend on equity Shares
- - -

As at March 31, 2019
11,283,469 71,410,452 $2,693,961

As per our report of even date atlached For & ON BEHALF OF BOARD

For VIPIN KUMAR & GOMPANY

Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No, 24236

2 2

 

  

Place: Saharanpur U.K-RGRRINAL)

Dated. 30th May.2019 FCA
M.No. 071279

 

¢
(Chaitanya Chaudhry)

Director

For NIRAJISPAT INDUSTRIES.LTO.

C

Din 06313354
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CharteredAccountants

iS NIRAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIES LTD

CASH FLOW STATEMENT T E N 45T MAR

PARTICULARS
34.03.2019 31.03.2018

CAS
H

FLO
W

FRO
M

OPERATING

ACTIVITI
ES

Profit before tax and extraordinary items 8,471,229 42,731,108

Adjustmentsfor :
Depreciation

3,034,554 3,108,568

Finance Cost
2,545,236 2,423,362

Other Incomefrom investments
(4,832,973) {4,388,889}

Prov. for change in Fair value of Shares
2,279 4,345

Operating profit before working capital changes
9.220.316 13,875,490

Aggusiments

for
:

Trade & Other Receivables
(1,275,556) (9,454130)

inventories
4,379,190 4,348,895

Trade & Other Payables
(6,161,544) (7,264,607)

Cash generated from operations
3,162,407 (1,521,363)

Direct Taxes
(2,141,000) (3,577,060)

Previous Year Adjustment
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NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (4) 973,544 (5,264,592)

CASH FLOW FR' £ NTSACTIVITIES

Purchase of fixed assets
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Sale of fixed assets
- -

Other Income from Investments
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NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B) 3,609,836 4,376,199

c FL ROM FINANCING Al

Proceeds from Unsecured Loans
(1,097,730) 31,646,635

Proceeds from borrowing from working capital ‘ :

Proceeds from borrowing from term loans (725,338) (27,403,538)
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NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C} (4,429,302) 4,819.735
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154,077 925,542

Cash and cash equivalents as at Ist April 1,358,937 433,394

Cash and cash equivalents a5 at 31st March
4,358,937
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VIPIN KUMAR& COMPANY

 

 

Chartered Accountants

NIRAJISPATINDUSTRIES LIMITED

TES ON FINANCI | Ist MARCH 201
:

As at As atParticulars 31,03.2019 34.03.2018  

. NON CURRENT INVESTMENT

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Quoted
Aggrigate Value of investment 15,439 15,439.
Less: Prov. for fair value 43.044 10,774

Total (a) 2,395 4,665

|! nture & Bonds
Aggrigate Value of Investment 11,066 14,056
Less: Prov. for fair value 17.066 11,056

Total (b) - -

{c) Unquoted Shares

Aggrigate Value of Investment 193,609 199,600
Less: Prov. for fair value (2,065,800) (2,066,800)

Total (c} 2,266,400 2,266,400

Aggregate amount of quoted investment (at Cost) 26,505 26,505
Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investment 189,606 199,600
{at Cost)

226,105 226,105.

Aggrégate amount of quoted Investment 2)395. 4,665
{at Fair Value}

Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investment : 2,266,400 2,268,400
(at Fair Value)

2,268,795 2,271,065

. OTHER Ni T

Consideredunlessstatedotherwise)
Security Deposits 1,056,117 4,055,117

TOTAL: 1,056,117 1,056,117

. INVENTORIES

{Astaken, valued and certified by the management}
(At lower of cost spd net resiizabie value unless stated otherwise)

Raw Materials 402,189 1,319,183
Finished & Semi-finished Goods 162,140 969,291
Stores, Spares & Packing Materials 461,716 106,750

 

TOTAL; 1,016,044 2,395,234
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Chartered Accountants

NIRAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Asat As at
Particulars 31,03,2049 34.03.2018

TRAD IVABLES

Unsecured and Considered qcod 9,780,951 8,189,307

9,780,951 8.189.307
 

Before accepting any new customer, the Company uses an extemal credit scoring system toassess the potential
customer's credit quality and defines cradit limits by customer, Limits and scoring attributed to customersare
reviewed Once a year.

The Company does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances nor does it have a
legai right of offset against any amounts owedby the Company tothe counterparty.

in determining the recoverability of a trede receivable, the Company Considersany changeinthe credit quality of
the trade receivable fromthe. date credit wasinitially granted up to the end of the reporting period. The
concentration ofcredit iskis limited due to the fact that the customer base is large and unrelated.

 
 

 

 

CASH
Cash In hand 13,721 15,777
with

in-current and deposit accounts 1,499,294 1,343,160

TOTAL: 1,613,074 1,358,937

. OTH ASSET
(Unsecured, considered good uriless stated ethierwise)
Advances recoverablein cash orin Kind or

for value to be received 121,119,801 119,950,878
OtherLoansand advances:

Prepaid Expenses 72,051 254.060
Balances with statutory / government authorities 2,594005 3,897,007

TOTAL: 123,785,887 124,101,945
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Chartered Accountants:

NIRAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIES LIMITED

NOTES

ON

FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2079

a As at As at
PaSeaeS 31.03.2019

|

31.03.2018
CAPITAL
Authorised

Capital

ee.
6,600,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each (6,00,000 Equity Shares asat =
March 31, 2019 and 6,00,000 Equity shares as at March 31/2018) 6,000600° 6,000,000

issued,Subscribed capitat
6,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each (6,00,000 Equity Shares as at

 

 

March 37, 2019 and 6,00,000 Equity shares as atMarch 31, 2018) 8,000,000 6,000,000

§,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs, 10/- each (6,00,000 Equity Shares as at '
March 31,2019 and 6,00,600 Equity shares as at March 31, 2018) 6,000,000 §,000,000

TOTAL: 6,060,000 6,000,000
 

The Company has.a single class of equity shares. Each shareholderis eligible for one vote per share held. The
dividend,if proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholdersin ensuinggeneral
meeting.

 

 

      
 

 

Details of shareholding more than 5% AS on 31.03.2019 As on 31.03.2018

Name of the share holder No.of shares % Held No. of shares So Held

Smt. Msdhw Chaudhary 143,960 16.98% 413,900 18.98%
Sh. Neeras Chaudhary (HUF} 54,300 9.05% 54,300 9.05%
Mis Pickup Suppliers (©) Ltd, $3,900 8.98% 53,906. 6.98%
Haryant Stainless Steet (P) Ltd 47,900 7.98% 47,900 7.98%
Sh, Nera; Chaudhary 61,600 10.27% 61,600 10.27%
Sh. Haryant Kumar Chaudhary 35,700 5.95% 35,700 5.95%
Sent. Vaishali Chaudhry 30,400 5.07% 30,400 5.07%

OTHER EQUITY

General Reserve 14,283,469 9,483,469
Retained Earnings 71,410,492 66,855,602

TOTAL: 62,693,961 76,139,071

General reserve

Under the erstwhile Indian Companies Act 1956. a.general reserve was created through an annual transfer of net

income ata specified percentage in accordance with applicable regulations. Thepurpose of these transfers was
to ensure thatif a dividend distribution in a givenyear is more than 10% of thepald-up capital of the Company for
that year, then the total dividend distribution Is less than the total distributable results for that year.

Consequent to introduction of Companies Act 2013, the requirement of mandatory transfer of a specified
percentage of the net profit to general reserve has been withdrawn and the Company can optionally transfer any
amount from the surplus of profit or loss account to the General reserves.

Retained Eamings
Retained earnings are the profits that the company has earned till date less any transfer to general reserve,
dividends or other distribution paid to shareholders 
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Chartered Accountants

NIRAJISPATINDUSTRIESLIMITED.

NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENT FORTHE YEARENDED31st MARCH2039

As at As at
Particulars 34.03.2019 34.03.2018

-TER
Secured Term Loans:

Standard Chartered Bank - 785,336
Unsecured Loans
From Related Parties 29,003,382 27,020,626
From Body-Corporate & Others: 34,086,333 37,165,825

Net Amount §3,089,715 64,973,781
 

The term loan from Standard Chartered Bank is secured by way of first charge on theproperty located at KD-45,
Kavi Nagar, Ghaziabad belonging to the director of thecompany and personal guarantee of the directors of the

 

 

 
    

 

 

 

     
 

 

 

 

company

. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY

Deferred Tax Liability (Net) 2,334,367 2,606,891

TOTAL: 334,307 6

nised?/ .Asat3ist

|

Recogr As at 31stDeferred tax balance in relation to March 2018 reversed March 2019

Property, plant and equipment 2,608,891 (272,524) 2,334,367

Total 2,606,891 (272,524) 2,334,367

Recognised /. AS at 3ist , As at 31stDeferred tax balancein refation to March 2047 reversed s March 2048

Property, plant and equipment 3,210,257 (603,256) 2,605,891

Total 3,210,257 (603,366) 2,606,894

. SHORTTERMBORROWINGS
Securedworking capitalLoans:

Bank.of India = 5

Net Amount 2 - “
 

 

Working capital limits are secured by first charge on the entire current assets of the companyincluding stocks of
raw material, work-in-progress, finisned goods, book-debts both present & future. Working capital limits are
further Secured by way of equitable mortgage of immovable property of the company at D-10, B.S. Road
Indusinal Ares, Ghaziabad and personalguarantee of the directorsof the company. 
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further Secured by way of equitable mortgage of immovable property of the company at D-10, B.S. Road
Indusinal Ares, Ghaziabad and personalguarantee of the directorsof the company. 
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NIRAJISPATINDUSTRIESLIMITED.

NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENT FORTHE YEARENDED31st MARCH2039

As at As at
Particulars 34.03.2019 34.03.2018
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- Asat As atRenticatars 31.03,2019

|

31.03.2018
. TRADE PAYABLE

Dues of micro and small enterprises - is
Sundry Creditors 5,081,465. 10,043,197

TOTAL:
5,081,465 10,043,197
 

Amount due to micro and small enterprises as defined in the “The Micto, Small and Medium EnterprisesDevelopment Act, 2006" has been determined to the extentsuch partes have been identified on the basis of
information available with the Company. The disclosures relating to micro and small enterprisesis as below:

(@ Principal amount remaining unpaid to supplier atthe end of the year . <
(¥) Interest due / accrued thereon remaining unpaid tosupplier at the.

“end of the year : >
(ili} Amount ofinterest due and payable for the period of delay in

making payment
> -

{which have been paid but beyond the appointed day duringthe year}
Dut without adding theinterest specified under this Act

. SHORTTERM PROVISIONS
Provision for Income tax 2,141,060 3,577,000

 

2,141,000 3,577,000

THER C ENT LIABILIT,
Current Maturity of Long Term Borrowings - =
Advancefrom Customers 267,045 399,929Liabilities for Expenses 349,856 893,676
Uabilities for Taxes 1,059,500 146,608

 TOTAL: 1,676,402 1,440,213
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NIRAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIES LIMITED

NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2019

oa As at As at
parecer’ 34.03.2019 31.03.2048

te. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Seale of Product $9,574,378 65,187,727
Hire Charges Service - 424,070

TOTAL: 59,574,378 65,641,797

#7. OTHER INCOME
Interest 4,832.973 4,388,889
Cther Income - 1.761,485
Exchange Fluctuation 4.735 =

4,637,708 6,150,358

18. COST OF RAW MATERIAL CONSUMED

Inventory at the beginning of the year 4,319,193 1,997,627
Ada: Purchases 31,380,625 35,890,697

32,699,818 37,888,324
Less; Inventory at the end of the year 402.189 1,319,493
Cost of raw material consumed | 32,297,629 | 36,569,131

‘Bs VALUE OF IMPORTED'NDEGENOUS RAW MATERIAL CONSUMED

DESCRIPTION Year ended on Year ended on
31,03,2049 31.03.2018

Imported = -
Imported (% of consumption) 0.00% 0.00%
Indigenous 32,297629 35,569,134
Indigenous (% of consumption) 100 60% 100-00%
TOTAL: 32,297,629 36,569,131

49. CHANGESIN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED & SEMI FI-GOODS
inventories at the beginning of the year 969,291 1,591,652

Inventories at the end of the year 162,146 969,291

TOTAL: 807,151 622,364

20. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
Salaries, Wages & Bonus 4,728,178 4,883,840
Statt Werlare Expenses 9,196 3,168

TOTAL; 4,737,374 4,887,006
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NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2019
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NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2019
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SPAT IN TRI IMT:

T N RTH ‘Bits H 2079

As at As atEMacaTe 31.03.2019

|

31.03.2018
1. FINANCE Cl

Interest on borrowings
2,457,428 2,337,776Bank Commission & Charges

87,808 85,586
TOTAL:

2,545,236 2,423,362

- OTHER EXPENSES
Consumption ofStores & Spares 4,000,630 4,083,813Electricity Expenses

4,450,511 4,727,745Security Charges
216,000 209.200:Repairs & Maintena :

Piant & Machinery
1.814.370 138,956_ Others

17,650 _ 700Freight & Forwarding
162,600 192,249Packing Charges
456,375 560.770Commission

- 12,114Telephone Expenses
30,434 §3,347Printing & Stationery
37,258 26,094Postage & Telegram
33,158 24,060Travelling and Conveyance
35,040 38,037Legal & Professional Expenses

246,370 160,180g nt a
Agdit Fees

17,000 17,008for Taxation Matter
8.000 8,000Insurance

537,074 102,467Rates, Taxes & Fees
355,767 342484Exchange Fluctuation

- 159.854Advertisement
64,100 36,493Miscellaneous Expenses
36,876 77,998

TOTAL:
12,518,914 10,988,559
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RAJ ISP, DUST D

NOTES

ON

FINANCIALSTATEMENTFORTHE

YEAR

ENDED31stMARCH2019

3. TAX EXPENSES
income of companies are subject to Indian income tax On a standalone basis. Each entity is assessed to taxon
taxable profits determined for each fiscal year beginning on April 1 and ending on March 31. For each fiscal year,
the respective entities’ profit or loss is subject to the higher of the regular incometax payableor the minimum
alternative tax ("MAT").

Statutory income taxes are assessed based on book profits prepared under generally accepted accounting
principles in India adjusted in accordance with the provisions of the (Indian) Income tax Act, 1964, Such
adjusiments generally retate to depreciation of fixed assets, disallowances of certain provisions and accruals,
deduction for tax holidays, the set-off of tax losses and depreciation carried on book profits adjusted for certain
lems as compared to the adjustments followed for assessing reguiar income taxunder normal provisions. MAT
for thefiscal year 2018-19is 19.055%, MAT. paid in excess of regular incometax during a year can be set off
against regular income taxes within a period of fifteen years succeeding the fiscal year in which MAT credit
arises Subject to the limits prescribed,

(a) Income tax expense / (benefits)

 

Current tax -

Current tax 2,141,000 3,577,000
Tax refund | reversal pertaining to earlieryears 47,863 166,039
Deferred tax:
Deferred tax (272,524) (603,366)

Total Tax expense / (benefit) 1,916,339 3,139,673
 

(b) Reconciliation of effective tax rate :
A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to accounting profit / (oss) before tax at the statutory income
tax rate to recognisedincome tax expense for the year indicated are-as follows:

CURRENT PREVIOUS|
DESCRIPTION YEAR YEAR

Net income before taxes 8,471,229 12,734,104
Enacted tax rate in India 26.00% 27.55%
Computed tax expense 2,202,520 3,507,737
Increasel{reduction) in taxes on account of;
Income exempt from taxation fltems not deductible (334,044) ($34,103)
Effect of tax pertaining toprior years 47.863. 166,039
Tax expense for the year 4,916,339 3,139,673
Effective income tax rate 22.62. 24.66

24. GS PER SHAF

Net profit after tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss
attributable to Equity Shareholders §,.554.890 9.597.431

Weightedaverage No. of Equity Shares 600,000 600,000

Basicand Diluted Earning per share (Rs.} 10.92 15.99

Facevalue per equity share (Rs.) 16.00 10.00 
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FINANCIALSTATEMENT

FOR
THE

YEAR

ENDED
34st

MARCH2010
- FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

25.1 Capital nagement

The Company being in a capital intensive industry, its objective is to maintain asCapital ratios and establish 4 Capital structure that would maximise the return to stamix of debt sng equity,

trong credit rating, healthy
keholders through optimum

On ils borrowings. The PNACipal source of funding ofthe Company has been, and is expected to continue to be,cash generated from its operations Supplemented by fundingfrom bank borrowings and the capital markets,
The Company regularly considers other financing and refinancing opportunities to diversifyits debt profife, reduce

interest bearing loans and borrowings less cash and cash equivalents,

| judicious allocation amongstportunities at minimum risk.
The Company monitors its capital using gearing ratio. which is net debt divided to total equity. Net debt inctudes,

Bank balancesother than Cash and cash

 

 

 
 

   

  

  

equivalents.

As atDESCRIPTION
31.03.2019 |S at 31.03.2018Longterm borrowings
63,089,715 84,973,784Current maturities of tong term dent

- :Short term borrowings
. .Less: Cash and cash equivalent

(4,513,044) (1,388,937)Net debt
61,576,701 63,614,844Total equity

88,693,961.24

|

82,139.071.05Gearingratio
063 O771 Equity includes all Capital and reserves ofthe Company.2. Debt is defined as long termand short term borrowings.

25.2 Categories of financial instruments

As at =DESCRIPTION
31.03.2018 [AS at 31.03.2017

Financial assets
Measured at amortised cost
Nom-current investment

2,268,795 2,27 1,065Trade receivables
‘9,780,951 8,489,307Cash and cash equivalents
1,513,014 1,358,937Total financial assets at amortised cost (A)

13,562,764 41,819,309
Financial tiabilities
Measured at amortised cost
Long term Borrowings #

63,089,715 64,973,781Short term Borrowings
- -Trade payables

5,081,465 10,643,197
Total financialliabilities carried at amortised cost {B) 68,171,180 75,016,978
    # including current maturities of long term debt.
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#6. Financial riskmanagement
The Company has a Risk Management Committee established by ts Board ofDirectors: for overseeing the RiskManagement Framework aad developing and monitering the Company's risk Management policies, The riskManagement policies are established to ensure timely identification and evaluation of risks, setting acceptable
risk thresholds, identifying and mapping controls. against these fisks, monitor the risks and their iimits, improve

and the Board toevaluate the adequacy of the risk management framework in relationto the risk faced by theCompany.

The risk management Pobcies aims to mitigate the following risks arising from the financial instruments:
- Credit risk and
~ Liquidity risk

26.1 Markot risk

changes in the marketprices. The Company is exposed in the ordinary course of its business to risks related tochangesin foreign currency exchange rates, commodity prices and interest rates.

influenced by factors such as demand and suppty, ‘Production costs (including the costs of raw material inputs)and global and regional economic conditions and growth, Adverse changes in any of these factors may reducethe revenue that the Company eams fromthe sale of its products.
The Company pPrimanly procured its raw materialsi. e. Resin, Styrene, Pigment & Chemicals etc. in the open
market from third parties Guring the financial year ended 31.03.2019 and is therefore subject to fluctuations inprices,

The Company aims to self the products at Prevailing market prices. Similarly the Company procures key rawmaterials like Resin, Styrene, Pigment etc. based on Prevailing market rates.as the Selling prices of buttons andthe prices of input raw materials move in the same direction. 
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DESCRIPTION
increase/(Decrease)

31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18Resin, Styrene, Pigment etc.
1,569,032.09 1,936,904.00

{1,569,032.00)| (1,936;904.00)    
4.2 tnt trate risk

Interest rate n$k is the riskthat the fair value-or future cash flows of a financial instrument wilt fluctuate becauseof changes in market interest rates. The Companyis exposed to interest rate risk because funds are borrowed atboth fixed and floating interest rates. Interest raterisk is measured by using the cash flow Sensitivity for changesin variable interest rate. The borrowings of the Company are principally denominated in rupees with a mix offixed3nd floating rates of interest. The Company has exposure to interest rate risk. arising principally on changes inMCLR. rate and LIBOR rates, The fisk iS managed by the Company by maintaining an appropriate mix betweenfixed and floating rate borrowings, ;

If interest rates had been 100 basis points higher / lower and all other variables were held constant, theCompany's profit for the year enced 31 March 2019 would decrease / increase by Rs.24.$74/- Gor the yearended 31 March 2018: decrease| increase by Rs. 23,378/-). This is mainty attributable to the Company'sexposure to interest rates on its variable rate Sorrowings,

26.2 Credit risk Managament

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations Fresuiling in financial loss{o the Company, Credit risk encompasses of both, the direct'risk of default and the risk of deterioration ofcreditworthiness as well as concentration risks. The Company has adopted a policy of only dealing withcreditworthy counterparties,

Customer credit risk is managed centrally by the Company and swbject to established policy, procedures andcontrol relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer is assessedbased on anextensivecredit rating scorecard andindividual credit limits defined in accordance with the assessment,
Crecit risk on receivables is also mitigated by securing the same against letters of credit and guarantees ofreputed nationalisedand private sector banks. Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers spread@Cossdiverse industries and geographical areas with no significant concentration of credit risk. No singlecustomer accounted for 10% or mare ofrevenue in any of the years indicated, The outstanding trade receivablesaré regularly monitored and appropriate action istaken for collection of overdue receivables.

 

 

Ageing of Trade Receivable

DESCRIPTION
As at As at_ 31.03.2018 34.03.2017

0-180 days
9,535,900 7,946,098.180-365 days

- 26,761.20Above 365 days
245,051 246,447.70      
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The following tables detail the Company's remainingcontractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilitieswith agreed repayment Periods and its non-derivative financial assets. The tables have been drawn up based onthe undiscounted cash flows of financial

Liquidity exposure as at 31 March 2019

fiabelities based on the earliest date on which the Company can be

 

 

     
 

 

 

DESCRIPTION
<1 Year > 1 Year Total

Financial assets
Trade receivables

8,780,951 - 9,786,951Cash and cash equivalents
1,513,074 - 1,513,044Other financial assats

-Total financial assets 11,293,966 - 11,293,966Financialliabilities
Long teeny borrowings

- 63,089,715 63,089,715Short term borrowings
: - -Trade payabies

5,081,465 - §,081,465Other financial liabilities
-Total financialliabilities

5,081,465 63,089,715 68,171,180
Liquidity exposure as at 31 March 2018

DESCRIPTION
<1 Year > 1 Year Total

Financial assets
Trade receivables

8,189,307 - 8,189,307Cash and cash equivaients 1,358,937 . 1,358,937Other financial assets
5Total financial assets

9,548,244 - 9,548,244Financialliabilities
Long term borrowings

- 64,973,781 64,973,781Shait term borrowings
e z =Trade payables

10,043,197 - 10,043197Otherfinancial liabilities
:Totalfinancial liabilities 10,043,197 64,973,784 75,046,978

    The Company has pledged its trade receivables and cash & cas
requirements for the banking facilities extended to the Company
Company once thesé banking facilities are surrencered,

h equivalentsin order to fulfil certain collateral

. There ds obligation to return the Securities to the
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RELATED

PARTY

DISCLOSURE:

Name of Relsted parties and Gescription of relationship with whom transactions have taken Place during the
year.-

{a}

K
e
y

ManagementPersonnel

:

Sh. Niraj Chaudhry
Smt, Komal Chaudhry

(b} Relative of Key Management Personnel ;SA. Niraj Chaudhry

{c) Entities

Controlled

byDitectors ang

their

Retatives:Mls Haryant Stainless Stee! Pyt. Lid. -Mis Haryant Stainless Steel LLP
Mis Pick Up Suppliers Py. Ltd,

The Company'srelated party transactions during the year are as below -

 

 
 

+

 
 

(Rs, in Lacs)Nature of Trangaction
Relative ofKey Entities Controlledoemt: Macagemesi by Directors &, Personnel Their refatives2819 2017-18 201849 2017-45 2018-19 2017-48Expenses

Remuneration Paid: 12:00 14.40 13.20 8.40 - -interest Paid 17.69 9.73 - - 6.88 -Loans Taken 5.00 600;20 - - 64.26 -Loans Repaid 1.00 322.21 . - 39.26 -
The above related party information have been disclosed to the extent such Parties havebeen identified by the
management on thebasisofinformation available. This has been relied upon by the Auditors

c E TIES
Contingent Liabilities not provided NIL (Previous Year Rs Nil)
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(Rs. fn Lacs)
VALUE OF IMPORTS ON CiF BASIS

Current Year Previous Year
Capital Goods

= $0.38
 

: 90.38. INCOME! EXPENDITUREIN FOREIGN CURRENCY ‘Current Year Previous YearEXPENDITURE

37.68 Nit
EARNINGS

Nil Nil

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

31.4 Statement of Compliance
Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India including indian Accounting Standards (ind AS) prescribed under the section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013: read with rule 3of the Companies {indian Accounting Standards} Rules. 2015 and the Companies
{Accounting Standards} Amendment Rules. 2016. The aforesaid financialstatements have Deen approved by the

year ended 31 March, 204 9, and accounting policies and other explanatory information in accordance with the
Ratification Issued by the Ministry of Corporate: Affairs “3 per the indian Accounting Standards (ind AS’)
prescribed under section 133of the Companies Act, 2013 fead with rule 2 of the Companies(Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 and ihe Campanies (Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules; 2076 with effect from 4

The Company follows the mercantilé system of accounting and recognizes income and expenses on aceryal
basis, The financial Statements have been Prepered on historical cost basis.
Company's financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (%), which is also its functional currency.

31.3 Property, Plant & Equipment
Property, plant and €quipment are Stated at cost, net of recoverable taxes, trade discount and rebates lesseccumulated depreciation and impairmentlosses,if any. Such cost includes Purchase price: borrowing cost andany Cost directly attributable to bringing the assetstoits WOrKing Condition for its intended use. net charges on

Depreciation on Property, plant dnd equipment is provided using straight line method based on usefullife of the
aSSEtS 8s prescribed in Schedule if ‘to the Companies Act, 2013
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31.4 Inventory
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value except in case of waste and scrape which are
valued at net realizable value.

Cost of raw material includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Cost of finished goods and work in progress include cost of direct materials and
labour and @ proportion of manufacturing overheads based on thenormal operating capacity but excluding
borrowing costs.

31.5 Revenue Recognition .
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. The Company recognizes
revenues on sale of products, net of discounts, returns, sales taxes and duties when the products are delivered
to customer or when delivered to a carrier for export sale, when significant risks and rewards of ownership pass
to the customer. Sale of products is presented gross of manufacturing taxes like excise duty wherever
applicable. Revenue from sale of waste and scrap are included in revenue.

interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, using
effective interest rate.

31.6 Employee Benefit
Contributions to Provident Fund, a defined contribution plan are made in accordance with the statute, and are.
recognized as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling thern to the contribution.

Company's contribution to state defined contribution plan namely, Employee State Insurance are made in
accordance with the statute, and are recognized as an expenses when employees have rendered services
entitling them to the contribution,

31.7 Borrowing Cost
Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalized as part
of the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready
forits intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to Profit and Loss account.

31.8 Foreign Currency Transaction
The functional currency of the Company is determined on the basis of the primary economic environment in
which it operates, The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupee (’).

The transactions in currencies other than the entity's functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at
the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary
tems denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items
carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retransiated at the rates prevailing at the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terns of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which
they arise.
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31.9 Financial instruments

31.9.1 Financial Assets

1.8.1.1 Initial recognition and measurement
All finatcial assets are initially recognized at fair value. Transaction costs that are ‘directly attributable to theAcquisition of financial assets, which are Hot at fair value ere Adjusted throughprofit or loss oninitial recognition,Purchase and sale offinancial assets are recognised using trade date accounting,
31.9.1.2 Subsequent measurement

31.9,1.2.i Financial assets carried at amortized cost .A financial asset i¢ measured atemortised costif it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold theasset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual termsof the financial asset aive rise onSpecified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amountoutstanding.

31.9.1.2,ii Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOc})A financial assetis measured at FVTOCI ifit is held within a business model whose adjective isachievedby bothcollecting contractual cash flows and Seiling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset giveris ON specified dates to cash flowsthat are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amountoutstanding.

31.9.1,2.iii Financial assets at fair value through profit or oss (FYTPL)A financial asset which is not Cassified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL,
31.9.1.3 Impairment of Financial assets
The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carriedat amortised cost and FVOCI debt instruments. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether herehas been a significant increasein credit risk.

31.9.2 Financial Liabilities

34,9.2.4 Initial recognition and measurement
Aut financial Kabilittes are recognized at fair value snd in case of losns, net of directly attributable cost, Fees ofrecurning nature are directly recognised in the Statement of Profit 'and Loss as finance cost
31.9.2.2 Subsequent measurement
Financial Kabilities are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method, For trade and other payablesmaturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due-to theshort maturity of these instruments

31.9.3 Derecognition of Financial Instruments
The Company derécognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flovs from the financialasset expire orit transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for Gerecognition under Ind AS 169. Afinancial fiabiltty (or 2 part of 3 financial liability) is derecognized from the Company's Balance Sheet when theobbgation specified in the contractis discharged or cancelled or expires.
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31.16 Taxation
Income tax expense repyesents the sum of thetax currently payable and deferred tax,
31.10.7 Current Tax:
Current tax is the amount of tax payable basedon the taxable profit for the year as determined in accordancewith the applicable tax rates and ihe provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

31.10.2 Deffered Tax
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the Carrying amounts of assets and Kabilities in thefinancial statements and the Correspondingtax bases used in the Computation oftaxable profit,

extent that it is no ‘onger probable that sufficient taxable Profits will be available fo allow all. oF part of the.assettobe recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured atthe tax rates that are expected to apply in the periog in whichthe: bability is Settled or the asset realised, based of tax fates (and tax laws} that have been enacted orsubstantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offsetif a legally enforceable fight exists to set off current taxassels against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and thesametaxationauthority

31.11 Provision
Provisions are recognised when the Company has-a present obtigation (legal or constructive) as a result of aPast event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying Economic benefits will be required to séttie theobligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obfigation.
If the effact of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using @ current pre-tax rate thatreflects, wien “ppropriaie, the risks specific to the liability. Wher discounting is used, ihe increase in theprovision due to the passageof time is recognised as a finance cost.

equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during theyear is adjusted for treasury shares, bonus issue, bonus element in.a rights issue to existing shareholders. shareSpiil and reverse share split (consolidation of shares).

Diluted earnings per share-is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax as adjusted for dividend, interestandolher charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the ditutive potential equity
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CRITICAL ESTIMATION AN EMEN

The preparation offinancial statements requires the useof accounting estimates which, by definition, wil seldom

equal the actual results. Management siso needs to exercise judgement in applying the company’s accounting

poles.

This note provides an overview of the areas thal involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of

tems-which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different

than those originally assessed, Delailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in

relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected tine item in the financial

statements:

Theareas involving critical estimates or judgements are:

- Estimation of useful ives of property, plant and equipment — Note 7

Property, plant and equipment represent 2 significant proportion of the asset base of the Company. The charge

in respect.of pesiadic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset's expected useful life and

the expected residual value at the end of its life, The useful lives ard residual values of Company's assets are

determined by the management at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed periodically, including at each

financial year end; The lives are based on historical experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of

future events, which may impact their life, such as changesin technicalor commercial obsolescence arising from

changes of improvementsin production or from a change in market demand of the product or service output of

the asset.

. Estimation ot Provisions — Note 14

- Estimation of current tax expense and payable — Note 23

The Company's tax jucisdiction is Indis, Significant judgements are involved in determining the provision for

income taxes, if any, including amount expected to be paidirecovered for uncertain taxpositions. Further,

significant judgement is exercised to ascertain amount of deferred tax asset (OTA) that could be recognised

based onthe probability that future taxable profits will be available against which DTA can be utilized and amount

of temporary difference in which OTA can not be recognised on wantof probable taxable profits

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated, They are based onhistorical experience and other factors,

including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the company and that are beseved to

be reasonable under the circumstances

Witheffect from July 71,2017 the goods and service tax (GST} has replaced Excise Duty, Cess etc, Accorcingly,

post applicability of GST, revenuefrom operation is disctosed net of GST. Hence the revenue from operations

and expenses for the year ended March 31, 2019 are not comparable with the previous period to that extent.

The previous period figures have been regrouped / reclassified / reacranged, wherever necessary toconfirm to

the current year presentation.
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